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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAAZEET R T

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Huatai Financial Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited (the "Company") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") set out on pages 8 to 162, which
comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2023, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA").

i E NP S T
INspire HK
o <
&

HERSMEREBAIRATESE

(B IE7E IHIL HI B IR 4 7))

BR

AZEECL TR (3] D FFFIEHR
8 E 162 BN ERESHIER(EB)ERAF
(AT T8AF ] Y EERBARLLT
SR [ BEE | OWEEMESRE, W%
WEAIER 2023 £ 12 A 31 HH&G S
M FEREEZHIEEENGSEE M
MEHERER. GAERSHRNGESIR
EMER, URESVHERENE, 8%
FEEMEFECRE BRI MR IR B

BB AE, ZHEEEVBREDRESF
WEETEATEMAN (FEMBERE%E
RIY BEEMPEH R T EEB R 2023
12 A 31 HWEEE BRI AEEZH
IFTFEENGEMHRRALGERERN

BHo

— 88 —



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BALZEEm R

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants ("the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BILAZEE R T

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
WAL SR &

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B E R

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure
and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BB RS

TO THE DIRECTORS OF

HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

- continued

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
- continued

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 April 2024
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

FEREMITR(EE)ERAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

fEEBER A EM SR GE
B 20234 12 H 31 Hik4EE

Revenue
Other income

Staff costs

Finance costs

Depreciation

Amortisation

Reversal of/(Provision) for
expected credit loss

Other operating expenses

(Loss)/Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

(Loss)/Profit after taxation

N
H AN

8 TR

Rl A

IrE

HHEREE
HE[E]/(5 )

HAh a8 & A
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MUIARI ST

MR (E518)/ 1
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NOTES
FYRE

2023
HK$
T

977,174,183
2,949,317,368

2022
HKS$
BT

1,590,984,244
2,572,936,155

3,926,491,551
(1,165,723,059)
(1,996,062,571)
(143,531,209)
(13,275,661)

6,708,283
(915,127,444)

4,163,920,399
(1,411,104,609)
(1,495,951,092)
(125,401,818)
(4,950,606)

(47,091,321)
(687,215,505)

(300,520,110)
(7,992,843)

392,205,448
(32,413,548)

(308,512,953)

359,791,900




HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREREREE)ARAHE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
FEEENMEMEERNE -8

FZE 20234 12 A 31 HIEFFEF

NOTE 2023 2022
Pt HKS$ HKS
#IT i
(Loss)/Profit for the year A E (ER)/BF (308,512,953) 359,791,900
Other comprehensive HAth 2 HRN/(FX)
income/(expense)
Items that may be reclassified A BEE R 75575
subsequently to profit or loss: B HIIEH -
- Exchange differences on - SN B A 7]
translation of financial BB ERR A
statements of overseas HMERE ZER
subsidiaries 16,145,169 2,449,418
- Cash flow hedge: net movement - IREREL:
in the hedging reserve EHRRE S ETEE (6,134,015) 48,172,872
- Net movement in financial - B EEHMAT
assets at fair value through other W a N BRI 2
comprehensive income & EISR 197,847 (176,881)
Items that will not be reclassified RGN EH L5
subsequently to profit or loss: B 5 H
- Revaluation of self-occupied - BE AR EY)
land and buildings EXRa 12 (1,250,000) (2,955,000)
Other comprehensive income R HARE TR
for the year 8,959,001 47,490,409
Total comprehensive (expense)/ EFLEE )M
income for the year b (299,553,952) 407,282,309
_9.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREMIEREB)FRAFE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

iR B M BIRILR
42023 12 4310

NOTES
B
Non-current assets JemENEE
Fixed assets EYE
- Self-occupied land and
buildings - BE LHAEEY) 12

- Other property, plant
and equipment

-, RBHEE 12

- Right-of-use assets -EHEEE 12,14
Intangible assets mEE 29
Interest in joint venture NEEMEZER 16
Financial assets at fair value o FES HAh A TH

through other comprehensive S N FRE SR A

income 21

Deferred tax assets IEFERR IR G 19(b)
Deposits, prepayments e, TRATERIAER

and other receivablés HAB B 22
Other assets Hihg g 13
Current assets MENEE
Accounts receivable JEK AR ER 20
Financial assets at fair value A FEKLHER

through profit or loss NIRI & A 17
Financial assets held under

resale agreements BENRESREEN 30
Deposits, prepayments Ha. EARIER

and other receivables HAth Bk K 22
Amount due from immediate R 2 i /N

holding company 35
Amounts due from fellow [ TR R BB A R 3K IR

subsidiaries 35
Cash and deposits Re MR 23(a)
Bank balances held on behalf RE P HFHERRAT

of customers “hex 23(a)

— 96 —

2023 2022
HK$ HKS
11,975,000 13,225,000
100,908,453 86,027,396
215,222,497 118,040,978
70,610,924 33,901,744
420,879,122 830,055,644
- 150,684,188
7,100,000 6,651,554
19,770,118 8,390,028
138,292,542 142,923,914
984,758,656 1,389,900,446

5,133,523,907
12,046,894,144
68,098,153
138,547,153
53,377,937,651

26,561,166,476
2,794,266,488

2,572,093,867

4,653,304,199
11,579,739,258
52,163,754
98,270,362
40,370,326,175

33,524,986,987
4,195,388,682

3,056,637,129

102,692,527,839

97,530,816,546
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERCHMEREB)ARAH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued

AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

AR EMBRILER - &
JA 2023 % 12 A 31 H

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements

Accounts payable

Amount due to a fellow
subsidiary

Amount due to ultimate
holding company

Debt securities issued

Loan payables

Lease liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Tax payable

Net current assets

Non-current liabilities

Subordinated loans from immediate

holding company
Debt securities issued
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Net assets

NOTES

BEE
MENE R
A FELIERAIRK
EREE 17
RIS E K 31
JEAFRRER 24
B —RERMEAF
*IE 35
B4 B A5 B A R FIE

35
O AT R RES 27
JEMTEK 36
HEAE 25
Hit B TR B &R 26
JEAT IR 19(a)
WMENE EEE
EmE&E
REHEERATN
BEER 35
C T B RS 27
HEARE 25
IEIEFIBEE 19(b)

Hin @I EEER 26

BERE

— 97 —

2023
HKS$
BTG

32,910,688,376

29,107,957
3,637,663,324

502,437

9,373,680
9,599,066,512
1,025,570,385

89,102,358
3,762,940,193

2,722,446

2022
HK$
#IT

36,281,963,765

40,165,394
4,179,309,484

501,562

9,357,360
8,489,843,192
593,793,291
33,087,648
2,938,064,260
24,326,000

51,066,737,668

52,590,411,956

51,625,790,171

44,940,404,590

8,592,540,000
31,636,998,197
137,783,485
14,700,000
685,603,003

8,577,580,000
25,319,047,320
96,273,100
13,300,000
487,972,167

41,067,624,685

34,494,172,587

11,542,924,142

11,836,132,449
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EReMEREE)FRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - continued
AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

FEMHRNEK - &

A20234%F 12 531 H

2022
HK$
BT

8,800,000,000
3,036,132,449

NOTE 2023
LiEs3 HKS$
HETT
Capital and reserves B
Share capital i 28 8,800,000,000
Reserves B2 2,742,924,142
Equity attributable to EATREFHEAN
owners of the Company i fgie 11,542,924,142

11,836,132,449

The consolidated financial statements on pages 8 to 162 were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 16 April 2024 and were signed on their behalf by:

HIE 162 EMGEEMBEHRECON 2024 47 16 AEESSMERTERET I, WHUTEER

A G 77

WANG Jfei QIAO Wei
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
% B
HH HE

— 98 —
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'HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIZRERE)FRAF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

HERERER

BZE 20234 12 A 31 Hik4E

Operating activities
(Loss)/ Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation
Amortisation
Finance costs
Share-based payment expenses
(Reversal of)/Provision for
expected credit loss
Fair value changes in investment
in joint venture

Increase in accounts
receivable
Increase in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in financial
assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Net movement in amount due
from/to ultimate holding company
Net movement in amount due
from/to immediate holding
company
Net movement in amounts
due from/to fellow subsidiaries
Decrease in bank balances held
on behalf of customers
Decrease in
accounts payable
Increase in other payables
and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in
financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase in financial assets held
under resale agreements
(Decrease)/increase in financial assets
sold under repurchase agreements
Tax paid

NOTES
PYRE

REVEE)
HLRT (85 18) i A
ARAEIEH
BN
e
R RA
CABEAR R 2 BE R STAT
BHEEER
(B [Bl)/ 4
HFELERENATE

FEYSCAR R E In

g, FEHRIER
oA FEMCER 3%

A TFELEBNERN
SRUE ES ) Hb

BN TFEKE M
NERHIERMEE
WD/ )

oA D /()

JE /A B 4R A A )
IR BN AR

B/ BT EERERA T
HRIBSEIFEE

R R B 4
AIRE BB
REFFERRITHEER
Wb

BB

H b RE(T R AT & A
il

EATPELEZENEN
ERBERD) /AN

BENRELEEER
1

HEHEBERMEER
(BN

RYREAL

— 100 -

2023

HKS$

T
(300,520,110)

(2,342,065,488)

2022
HKS$
BT
392,205,448

(1,381,108,885)

143,531,209 125,401,818
13,275,661 4,950,606
1,942,863,827 1,026,935,039
6,345,645 10,765,846
(6,708,283) 47,091,321
409,176,522 176,903,152
(134,101,017) 403,144,345

(473,621,436)

(51,656,881)

(467,154,886)
157,964,348
4,631,372

16,320

(11,288,994,081)
6,963,821,386
484,543,262

(541,646,160)

1,016,683,373

(6,634,604,049)
(15,934,399)

(11,057,437)
(28,528,826)

(443,901,877)
(4,413,674)
8,766,991,100
(145,691,487)
(65,151,701)

(502,070)

(30,421,357,637)

(7,710,560,299)
2,134,940,267

(1,364,357,709)

1,560,388,522

6,716,007,400
(52,163,754)

40,165,394
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIEREE)FRAA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

REReRER - &

HE 20234 12 A 31 HiL&EE

Cash used in operations
Interest received

Net cash used in operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of intangible assets

Net cash used in
investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Proceeds from issuance
of debt securities
Redemption of debt securities
issued
Subordinated loans from immediate
holding company
Capital element of lease payments
Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Decrease in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

Effect in foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

NOTES
EE:

EEEEFTAN S
SHH B

REBTEBIATH KBS

BEEE
BABEEE
NS E

BEIEE AT
HewHE

BhEIEE)
HIRITEREIIMIRE 23(b)
HIBIRITER 23(b)

RITEBESFFRTIE 23(b)

B AT RIS FE S 23(b)
B HEEERAEM

BEBRK 23(b)
HEEEBEAETM 23(b)
SATREE A A 23(b)

RUBETEBEA
HIB &R

RemRESEYRDS

B1H1H8EREEM
BRESEY
SRR E B E

12 A 31 HHWERE
MRESEY 23(a)

2023
HK$
#TT

(11,019,639,111)
323,737,662

2022
HKS$
HIT

(20,586,463,180)
164,098,547

(10,695,901,449)

(20,422,364,633)

(70,963,642)
(49,984,841)

(28,309,323)
(36,275,380)

(120,948 483)

(64,584,703)

18,899,000,000
(18,466,923,000)

33,002,543,981

(22,479,112,558)

(81,281,652)
(1,489,488,185)

38,457,753,125
(38,161,211,650)

33,240,041,514
(17,417,174,675)
4,678,680,000

(66,667,202)
(811,147,164)

9,384,738,586

19,920,273,948

(1,432,111,346)

4,195,388,682

30,989,152

(566,675,388)

4,711,592,483

50,471,587

2,794,266,488

4,195,388,682

—101 -
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSMEREE)ERL A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
AR
HE 20234 12 B 31 HIFEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited (the "Company") is a public
company and was incorporated in Hong Kong
on 23 November 2006 with limited liability.
The registered office address of the Company
is located at 62/F, The Center, 99 Queen's
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are
investment holding, dealing in securities and
futures contracts, provision of margin
financing, advising on securities, corporate
finance and asset management services.

The Company is a licensed corporation under
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")
which is licensed to perform the following
regulated activities: dealing in securities
(Type 1), dealing in futures contracts (Type
2), advising on securities (Type 4), advising
on corporate finance (Type 6), providing
automated trading services (Type 7) and asset
management (Type 9). On 29 April 2021, the
Company was granted an insurance broker
company license from Insurance Authority to
carry on regulated activities in general and
long-term business (including linked long-
term business with a validity period of 3
years).

On 10 July 2023, the Company obtained
above mentioned Type 7 license from
Securities and Futures Commission ("SFC")
for providing automated trading services.

On 5 May 2023, the Company was approved
as an issuer of Listed Structured Products
(Warrants and CBBCs) by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("SEHK").

—-102 —

—frER

EREGMEREE)BRAT (AL
ALY R—FR 20064 11 A 23 HEFRG
SEM LA R AT . AAFRIEEMIEE
BRI A IR 2 5 KIE H 99 SE IR
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ERF M EERFRIREER. EHESF
FIEEH. RIUFEEME. HEFR
HRERD . ERE L EEE R

KRAElREE (FBHFELABREG) THHE
RRvEE, AT HARET U T ZREE
B BBRALH (B 1), HIRE54%5
GE28). MEFREERGE 43, 3
HEMERMER B o) . RHEEH
WA G RIF(CE TR R EEEHEE 9
). A2021F 4 A29H, KAFER
FH OREs3E BB R R S IR B AR AL A =T R
B, AIRE-RARPEEBNZRE R
(BFEREHERREY, A=
),

2023 7H 10 H, KAFREE AR
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TEEERIEE 7 SRR, W EEIINR SR
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R2023FE 5 A5 H, ARAREFBES
TEFTBERAT( [ FHEEAZAT] ) MR
Ry LT AEREME A SRR AR AL ML AR BERE) ) 3%
ITERE,
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReHMEREB)ARAH

GENERAL INFORMATION - continued 1.

In addition, the Company is an Exchange
Participant and a SPAC Exchange Participant
of SEHK, a Direct Clearing Participant of the
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited ("HKSCC"), a Clearing Participant of
the HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited
("HKCC"), a Futures Commission Merchant
of the Hong Kong Futures Exchanges Limited
("HKFE"), a market maker on the
International Order Book under London Stock
Exchange, a non-trading member of
Turquoise Global Holdings Limited and a
member participant of Macau Exchange. The
Company became a listing member and
trading member of Luxembourg Stock
Exchange on 24 March 2023.

On 13 September 2022, the Company
obtained the qualification as a participant of
Option Trading Exchange from SEHK and
was admitted as a Direct Clearing Participant
of the SEHK Options Clearing House Limited
("SEOCH"). Subsequently on 14 February
2023, the Company obtained the Options
Market Maker Permit from SEHK.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Huatai International Financial Holdings
Company Limited, a company incorporated in
the Hong Kong. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company's ultimate holding
company is Huatai Securities Co., Ltd., a
company incorporated in the People's
Republic of China and is listed on Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601688) and
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code:
6886) and the global depository receipts
("GDRs") of which are listed on the London
Stock Exchange (Symbol: HTSC).

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$")
which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company, unless otherwise stated, and
were approved for issue by the Board on 16
April 2024.

In the event of any inconsistency between the

English and Chinese version of these financial
statements, the English version shall prevail.

—103 -
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIER(EB)FRAFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 for the preparation of
the Group's consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 17
(including the
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts

Disclosure of
Accounting
Policies

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related
HKAS 12 to Assets and Liabilities
arising From a Single
Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform-
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial positions
and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

— 104 —
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIEREE)E R

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
- continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for
the first time in the current year. HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements is
amended to replace all instances of the term
"significant accounting policies" with
"material accounting policy information".
Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other
information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting
policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions, other
events or conditions, even if the amounts are
immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material
transactions, other events or conditions is
itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy
information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy
information.

— 105 -
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERE

R B () B R A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
- continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of
Accounting Policies - continued

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements (the "Practice
Statement") is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the "four-step materiality
process" to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an
accounting policy is material to its financial
statements. Guidance and examples are
added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had
no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance but has affected
the disclosure of the Group's accounting
policies set out in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSRIE IR (FB) A RAT

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
- continued

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on
the accounting implications of the abolition
of the Mandatory Provident Fund

("MPF") - Long Service Payment ("LSP")
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong

The Group operates in Hong Kong and is
obliged to pay LSP to employees under
certain circumstances. Meanwhile, the Group
makes MPF contributions to the trustee who
administers the assets held in a trust solely for
the retirement benefits of each individual
employee. Offsetting of LSP against an
employee's accrued retirement benefits
derived from employers' MPF contributions
was allowed under the Employment
Ordinance (Cap.57). In June 2022, the
Government of the HKSAR gazetted the
Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
"Amendment Ordinance") which abolishes
the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers' MPF contributions to offset
severance payment and LSP (the
"Abolition"). The Abolition will officially
take effect on 1 May 2025 (the "Transition
Date"). In addition, under the Amendment
Ordinance, the last month's salary
immediately preceding the Transition Date
(instead of the date of termination of
employment) is used to calculate the portion
of LSP in respect of the employment period
before the Transition Date.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReHEREB)FRAH

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current vear
- continued

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on
the accounting implications of the abolition
of the Mandatory Provident Fund

("MPF") - Long Service Payment ("LSP")
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong -
continued

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
"Accounting implications of the abolition of
the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong" which provides guidance for the
accounting for the offsetting mechanism and
the impact arising from abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong.

This change in accounting policy abolition of
the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism has had
no material impact on the Group's financial
positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ERemERGEB)ERAF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

KA BBV HREE BBV BERS
ERIERTA -

effective

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet B E AR EM RSB SRR S EEMEET
&=

The Group has not early applied the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet

A £ ) 3 B4R B T 9 2 9B B SR AR AL
BT ST B B TR 4 e B B LB AT A

effective:

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of FigEer st R g E BB N T B
HKFRS 10 Assets between an Investor #1098 BT BHER
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint REReE ENGE !

Venturel @EU% 28 %}ﬁ,
(CHES)
3 2 p ; =

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and FEM ;T:%?fiu:: BERMARTHHEAE
HKFRS 16 Leaseback? HERIZE 16 5%

(CHES)

Amendments to Classifications of Liabilities HEestHER)| ¥R ESIEAEIR

HKAS 1 as Current or Non-current R JERE R BRI TEE S
and related amendments CHES SR B 12 5T A5 (2020 4E)?
to Hong Kong
Interpretations 5 (2020) 2

Amendments to Non-current liabilities b R o b B 2 = )
HEAS 1 with Covenants? i " ATYER) FHRIERB AR

19
(5T 4)

Amendments to Supplier Financing TG R LB A E 2 HE 2
HKAS 7 and Arrangements? B TIREEE
HKFRS 7 B R 4 R

%79
Amendments to Lack of Exchangeability* (25T %)
Sk A=l HER) = FTRS Ha bk 3
v FIE A BE TR
2198
((CHIES)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2025.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSRMBREE)ERAT

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet
effective - continued

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the ""2020
Amendments') and Amendments to
HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the '"2022 Amendments')

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification
and additional guidance on the assessment of
right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

- clarify that if a liability has terms that
could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the transfer of
the entity's own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current
only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

FER SR EB)ERAE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not vet
effective - continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the '"2020
Amendments') and Amendments to HKAS
1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the "2022 Amendments") - continued

- specify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current should be based
on rights that are in existence at the end of
the reporting period. Specifically, the
amendments clarify that the classification
should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the
liability within 12 months.

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are
conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022
Amendments. The 2022 Amendments specify
that only covenants with which an entity is
required to comply with on or before the end of
the reporting period affect the entity's right to
defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date. Covenants
which are required to comply with only after
the reporting period do not affect whether that
right exists at the end of the reporting period.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMIZEREE)BRLF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") - continued

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective - continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) (the "2020
Amendments") and Amendments to HKAS
1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the "2022 Amendments") - continued

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the
disclosure requirements about information that
enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after
the reporting period, if the entity classify
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as
non-current when the entity's right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the
entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective
date of applying the 2020 Amendments to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments,
together with the 2020 Amendments, are
effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies
the 2020 amendments for an earlier period after
the issue of the 2022 Amendments, the entity
should also apply the 2022 Amendments for
that period.

Based on the Group's outstanding liabilities as
at 31 December 2023, including loans payable
and debt securities in issue, and the related
terms and conditions stipulated in the
agreements between the Group and the relevant
lenders, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group's
liabilities.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREeMIZR(ER)G RS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the "Group").

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value as
explained in the material accounting policy
information set out below:

- Self-occupied land and buildings;
- investments in financial instruments at fair
value through profit or loss or at fair value

through other comprehensive income;

- derivative financial instruments.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIERER)F R

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in the "Critical Accounting
Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty" section.

Certain comparative figures have been

reclassified or restated to conform with current
year presentation.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

RSB (FE)E RA T

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

Huatai Financial Holdings (Hong Kong)
Limited, as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Huatai Securities Co., Ltd has applied section
379 and section 380 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance ("HKCO") and
paragraph 4 of HKFRS 10 "Consolidated
Financial Statements" to prepare company
level financial statements as the Company's
statutory financial statements. Those financial
statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the
HKCO.

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 have been
prepared for the purpose of providing
additional information to the management on
the financial position and financial
performance of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.
Consequently, these consolidated financial
information and the comparatives do not
constitute the Company's statutory financial
statements for either of the years ended

31 December 2023 or 2022. Information
relating to the Company's statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in
accordance with section 436 of the HKCO is as
follows:

The Company's auditor has yet to report on the
Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 whilst had reported
the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The auditor's report
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
unqualified, did not include a reference to any
matters to which the auditor drew attention by
way of emphasis without qualifying its report;
and did not contain a statement under sections
406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the HKCO.

— 115 -

SRR AR AR E L E K E 5T

St [ =
KER -4

KR E A RR AR AL YE - 43

EAERELRBRNERATN LB
ANF, ERSMEREBAERATD
TRIEZF A BB 58 379 14 K 568 380 14
REBMHREERE 105 [E50
BHRE ] 54 BEREAT BEMNITBR
RIERBERRNTHNEEMBERE. KAF
B R 2R O IR ST A & 084 (1)
FHHRE R, T AT e ER
FIF W B R ER RS,

Gl A E 2023 £ 12 A 31 HIEEERE
EHBBREN N REGESEM ERE
HERMEE AN REFA %
RIMFIEA B ERIME R . Hk, 3%
s S E R K LR B M AR A
NFEIEVE 2023 FFE 2022 FF 12 B 31 H
I FEEZ AT ERBEEER. BREAAA
BV B A IS AR B BHRR 5 2 |1 1441
B 436 MR E M

AN B B EERA R R AL 2023 4F

12 A 31 HIESEENMBRE, H2®R
HEUE 2022 5 12 A 31 B IEEFEE %
. Bk 20224 12 A 31 HIEEER
MR IAZEE RS A EREE

Ry W E EaEsRn RS R E
T8; AR RIE A FRFIE 406(2),

407(2) 5t GYEIEHIBRIA .

-29.



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMIEREB)ARAA

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-
based Payment", leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16
"Leases" ("HKFRS 16"), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as value in use in HKAS
36 "Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial
asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMERGEEERALT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fair value - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes,
fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

When the Group is an investor of a fund in
which the Group also acts as a fund manager,
the Group will determine whether it is a
principal or an agent for the purpose of
assessing whether the Group controls the
relevant fund.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMIEREB)FRAH

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
- continued

An agent is a party primarily engaged to act on
behalf and for the benefit of another party or
parties (the principal(s)) and therefore does not
control the investee when it exercises its
decision-making authority. In determining
whether it is an agent to the fund, the Group
would assess:

- the scope of its decision-making authority
over the investee;

- therights held by other parties;

- the remuneration to which it is entitled in
accordance with the remuneration
agreements; and

- the decision maker's exposure to variability
of returns from other interests that it holds
in the investee.

An investment in a subsidiary is
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no impairment
evidence.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERERMER(EE)FRAA

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
- continued

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset, or where applicable, the cost of initial
recognition of an investment in associate or a
joint venture.

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
the Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over its management
including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or the Company and other parties
contractually agree to share control of the
arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint
venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is qualified to apply exemption from
equity method when the investment in an
associate or a joint venture is held by, or is
held indirectly through, a group entity that is
venture capital organisation or similar entity,
those investments in associates and joint
ventures may be measured at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments ("HKFRS 9™).
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EREMEREE)FRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
- continued

Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable
net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the associate or joint
venture that forms part of the Group's equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee's net assets and
any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see below on impairment on non-financial
assets). Any acquisition-date fair values of the
investee's identifiable net assets over the cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss, and
post-tax other comprehensive income for the
year are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee.
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ERESMIEREB)FRLA

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
- continued

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the group's interest in the investee
except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset

_ transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

—-121 -

BRI HEEENERE

i
BRI B - 4

B R, BEsmRkaEPE-H

KEBEBE ARG EREZHMITS
FrEERIAREIRAG, HWERARERK
RE A m Frh F M a E RSN (HinA
ARERE RGN CEREE N IREE,
A& BN ESR 2 H FERR

IARREE AR TR AR B AR
R AR EEEENREE /N
/\TE’J?”%, RIS EERTEREE
m. R2Z, ARAKEEEUEDIEZ
H.

FEFTE HARBEL T, EAKENEH
%&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%gﬁ&%AiAﬁﬁf
HEZHE, BEANERREEEN
A WA SRR, bR A RO A B
Eﬁ?ﬁ&#ﬁ I:Pﬁﬁnuo E%@%Eﬁﬁ/aﬁ
L FER BT RE BRI RE A
TM%E@& VHEER. HESRE
W AE G EEN R FERRR N o FE.

-35-



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMEREE)ERAF

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

The Group initially recognises loan
payable, debt securities issued and
subordinated liabilities on the date on
which they are originated. All other
financial instruments (including regular-
way purchases and sales of financial
assets) are recognised on the trade date,
which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases or sale are purchases or
sale of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

A financial asset or financial liability is
measured initially at fair value plus or
minus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVTOCI") or FVTPL.
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EREMITR(EB)H R AT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold
assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

A debt instrument is measured at
FVTOCI only if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSRIBIR(EB)ERAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that on initial
recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income ("OCI"). This
election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit making; or

- itis a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, on initial recognition, the
Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

— 124 -

AR B M BRI AR R YE L E KE AT

BER(ER - &

EREE R AL - E

paiits

() FEEHIE

T8 -4E

Pl HAb Rl g 2 AR 1 DU -
EAEBRI AR, MERVIIARER IR
FIEL R ER AR, A%
[ 7T LA B da [m] b3S 1 1 Hoy 4 THD
Yozt 2FIHAR A TESE . g
AATE IR E R .

fi BB LA R IE I, ERE ER/FIER
5 13 -

L HBEAEEA M AT AN S
= o

- ENIIRHERRRY, AKECHEA
HAREALREEN e T
HAam—us, Hzdeik
AR TR R E T &

- A R
AFETA.

BLoh, ¥IERRERRNRy, AKBEA LA
RESHL BT 35 2 17 & 1 N AL AN N\ R
g EE R mI s AR E
R ERVEE UE A FEEERA
AR, W 0 REVH PR EREE V> gt
SETC.

-38 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMERGEE)FRAH

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the
objective of a business model in which an
asset is held at a portfolio level because
this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to
management. The information
considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for
the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. In
particular, whether management's
strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest revenue,
maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of the
liabilities that are funding those assets
or realising cash flows through the
sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio
is evaluated and reported to the
Group's management;

- the risks that affect the performance
of the business model (and the
financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks
are managed;
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSMEREE)FRAF

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i1) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Business model assessment - continued

- how managers of the business are
compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of
sales in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and its expectations about
future sales activity. However,
information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of
an overall assessment of how the
Group's stated objective for managing
the financial assets is achieved and
how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading
or managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FVTPL because they are
neither held to collect contractual cash
flows nor held both to collect contractual
cash flows and to sell financial assets.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIEREBFRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Assessment whether contractual cash
fows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment,
"principal" is defined as the fair value of
the financial asset on initial recognition.
"Interest" is defined as consideration for
the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as profit
margin. In assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely
payments of principal and interest, the
Group considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making the assessment, the
Group considers:

- contingent events that would change
the amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;
- prepayment and extension terms;
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGREREB)ARAH

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i1) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Assessment whether contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal
and interest - continued

- terms that limit the Group's claim to
cash flows from specified assets (e.g.
non-recourse asset arrangements); and

- features that modify consideration of
the time value of money - e.g.
periodical reset of interest rates.

Amortised cost and interest income

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERECMEREEERAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Amortised cost and interest income
- continued

Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments measured at
FVTOCI, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below on credit impairment
of financial assets). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period (with the
amortised cost being the gross carrying
amount less the impairment allowance).
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIZREB)FRAH

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i1) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Debt instruments as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying
amounts for debt instruments classified as
FVTOCI as a result of interest income
calculated using the effective interest
method, and foreign exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these
“debt instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of fair value reserve.
Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding
adjustment to other comprehensive
income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When
these debt instruments are derecognised,
the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity instruments designated as at
Frv1oct

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.
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EReHIEREB)ERAA

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(11) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI - continued

Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the "revenue"
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or at FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss include
any dividend and interest income on the
financial assets.

Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial
liabilities, other than financial guarantees

and loan commitments, as measured at
amortised cost or FVTPL.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

# RSB (EE) A RAT

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Financial liabilities - continued

Financial liabilities are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial liability is (i)
held for trading, or (ii) those designated as
at FVTPL.

Conditions for classifying financial
liabilities as held for trading are largely
similar as the conditions for classifying
financial assets as held for trading.

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives,
and HKFRS 9 permits the entire
contract to be designated as at FVTPL.
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EREMER(EE)HRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIJAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent

measurement - continued
Financial liabilities - continued

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities including loan
payable, debt securities issued, financial
assets sold under repurchase agreements,
accounts payables, amount due to holding
company and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
Definition of effective interest is detailed
above and interest expense on financial
liabilities is recognised on an effective
interest basis in profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests in consolidated
investment funds

A financial instrument that gives the
holder the right to put it back to the issuer
for cash or another financial asset (a
'puttable instrument') is a financial
liability. The financial instrument is a
financial liability even when the amount
of cash or other financial assets is
determined on the basis that has the
potential to increase or decrease. The
existence of an option for the holder to put
the instrument back to the issuer for cash
or another financial asset means that the
puttable instrument meets the definition of
a financial liability.
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EREMIZREE)FRAA

3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement - continued

Non-controlling interests in consolidated
investment funds - continued

Net assets attributable to holders of non-
controlling interests in consolidated
investment funds are determined based on
the attributable shares or units of the
residual assets of the consolidated
investment fund after deducting the
consolidated investment fund's other
liabilities. The holders have the right to
put their attributable shares to the fund for
cash with no cause.

As at year end, such financial liability of
net assets attributable to holders of non-
controlling interests in consolidated
investment funds is presented as
"financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - non-controlling interest" in
the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In the case of acquisition or disposals of
such non-controlling interests in
consolidated investment funds, any
difference between the acquisition cost or
sale price of these non-controlling
interests and the carrying value of these
non-controlling interests is recognised in
profit or loss.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERSIIR(EE) G RAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iif) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of
the asset (or the carrying amount allocated
to the portion of the asset derecognised)
and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) a cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in OCI in respect of debt
instrument is recognised in profit or loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in
OCI in respect of equity instruments
designated as at FVTOCI is not
recognised in profit or loss on
derecognition of such instruments. Any
interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.
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BRI (FE)ARAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iii) Derecognition - continued
Financial assets - continued

The Group enters into transactions
whereby it transfers assets recognised on
its consolidated statement of financial
position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets. In such cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are
securities lending and sale-and-repurchase
transactions.

When assets are sold to a third party with a
concurrent total rate of return swap on the
transferred assets, the transaction is
accounted for as a secured financing
transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase
transactions, because the Group retains all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Group neither
retains nor transfers substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of a
financial asset and it retains control over
the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to
which it is exposed to changes in the value
of the transferred asset.

— 136 —

?éﬁ%%%%%%gﬁﬁiﬁ
BURER - &

EMEENEMEE -8

(iii) #XICWERR - 48

e EE - 5

FEBRIIZHHEIE, BIHER
RERE R BRI R PR R

E, WEORE BB E M TE B
FBRHR S BB N Bl R FEBLEEE
WF, ARIEHECEREE.

ZER 5 FIROEE N EE LA
B 5 .

BEREGTHE=ZITMRRYCE
MR EHFEAERREL, RIFZS
5 B B3 5 AR A IR R
RAHNR, AR/EEEREZE
B AR ERIETA S8 R &
i K (B R

AR E R OR B SRR £t
KA EEE D B A
WERE 7 HRZA ENIEHER
Toms, AEEFURFES
ERREARBEMRZEE, M
,Ahﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬁﬁ%gé
BEEZHNEEESE.

-50 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)HRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(ii1) Derecognition - continued
Financial assets - continued

In certain transactions, the Group retains
the obligation to service the transferred
financial asset for a fee. The transferred
asset is derecognised if it meets the
derecognition criteria. An asset or liability
is recognised for the servicing contract if
the servicing fee is more than adequate
(asset) or is less than adequate (liability)
for performing the servicing.

Financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial
liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)ERAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iv) Modifications of financial assets and
financial liabilities

Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group evaluates whether the
cash flows of the modified asset are
substantially different from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms
are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of
any fees received, and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial asset,
after reducing gross carrying amount that
has been written off.

If the cash flows are substantially
different, then the contractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset
are deemed to have expired. In this case,
the original financial asset is derecognised
(see (ii1)) and a new financial asset is
recognised at fair value.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EReMIEREB)FRAA

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(iv) Modifications of financial assets and
financial liabilities - continued

Financial assets - continued

If the cash flows of the modified asset
carried at amortised cost are not
substantially different, then the
modification does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset. In
this case, the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from
adjusting the gross carrying amount as a
modification gain or loss in profit or loss.
If such a modification is carried out
because of financial difficulties of the
borrower, then the gain or loss is
presented together with impairment losses.
In other cases, it is presented as interest
income.

Financial liabilities

The related assessment on whether a
modification is substantial is similar to
that of financial asset. If modification is
substantial, the original financial liability
is derecognised and a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in profit or loss.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMIEREB)ARAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets and liabilities - continued

(v) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are offset and the net amount presented in
the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a
net basis only when permitted under
HKFRS, or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions such
as in the Group's trading activity.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash
flow hedge accounting, in which case the
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective
hedge is recognised in other comprehensive
income. A derivative is presented as a non-
current asset or a non-current liability if the
remaining maturity of the instrument is more
than 12 months and it is not due to be realised
or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives
are presented as current assets or current
liabilities.
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REMEREBERAT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Hedging

The Group designates certain derivatives as
hedging instruments to hedge the variability in
cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions arising from changes in
foreign exchange rates and variable rate
borrowings (cash flow hedges).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedging instrument in a cash
flow hedge, the effective portion of any gain or
loss on the derivative financial instrument is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction
subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the associated gain or loss accumulated in the
hedging reserve is removed from equity and
included directly in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or
the non-financial liability.

For all other hedged forecast transactions, the -
amount accumulated in the hedging reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the
hedged cash flows affect profit or loss (such as
when a forecast sale occurs or interest expense
is recognised).
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERIER(EE)BRAF

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Hedging - continued
Cash flow hedges - continued

If a hedging relationship no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting (including when
the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised), then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively.
When hedge accounting is discontinued, but the
hedged forecast transaction is still expected to
occur, the amount that has been accumulated in
the hedging reserve remains in equity until the
transaction occurs and upon which it is
recognised removed or reclassified from equity
in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to
take place, the amount that has been
accumulated in the hedging reserve is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
immediately.

Fixed assets

The following properties held for own use are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair
value at the date of the revaluation:

- Self-occupied land and buildings

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of reporting period.
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EREMIER(EB)HRAH

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

- continued

Fixed assets - continued

Changes arising on the revaluation of
properties held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the
property revaluation reserve. The only
exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior
to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will
be credited to profit or loss to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of
that same asset had previously been
charged to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to
retained profits and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Other items of plant and equipment

Other items of fixed assets including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying
fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

2R & B R (BB IR A F)

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Fixed assets - continued
Other items of plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Furniture, fixture, Shorter of lease

and equipment term or 2 - 3
years
Motor car 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERCHEREB)ERAH

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
- continued

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development activities (or from the
development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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EReMZR(EE)ER AT

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
- continued

Internally-generated intangible assets -
research and development expenditure
- continued

Subsequent costs and qualifying development
expenditure incurred after the completion of a
system are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with that item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs and other subsequent
expenditure are charged to profit or loss when
incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets' estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the
date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Internally developed
software

3 -5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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EREGMIEREE)ARAH

W

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
- continued

Amortisation - continued

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

The following intangible asset is assessed to
have indefinite useful life:

- Trading rights

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs") on the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and deposits, bank
balances held on behalf of customers,
accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables and financial assets held
under resale agreements, which are
held for collection of contractual cash
flows that represents solely payments
of principal and interest); and

- debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

— 147 —

RO BRI AR R E g
HEREER - &

BV E (RFTE L - &

# - 4B

AEEAEHHE T AR ENELE
s W EEAE R B R Y & AT
PRAE IR AERR, AT BN
IRULE TSR A B IR £
NI fhAE SR . BN, BREEAS
BESE A AR AT AL S B & 5 80 H 1
8, MR ESCHTEA BE AR 1
E I ECRNIR.

CAS ST 3 A4 2% P R A PR R 5

- R5E
EEEIRMNG & BE
) ERMITANEEEA

AEEH T FIEE TR B
IRHERR IR R -

- HEBERAETENESRE E (R
HIRE&MER. REFFEY
SRITAEOR . BRI, &M
HoAh UK B IR E SRS
ERK, TR s A
M ERIRSMIEARE TR

- RATEECEE TS
BRI T TA.

-6] -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

BERGUBREE) GRAA

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(1)  Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

The Group considers that there shall be no
loss allowance for ECL on loan
commitment given the rights held by the
Group in cancelling the commitment at its
sole discretion.

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments and equity instrument
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to
the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses of financial assets. Credit
losses are measured as the present value
discount using the original effective
interest rate of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive). For undrawn loan
commitments, expected cash shortfalls are
measured as the difference between (i) the
contractual cash flows that would be due
to the Group if the holder of the loan
commitment draws down on the loan and
(i1) the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive if the loan is drawn down.

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using current effective interest
rate where the effect of discounting is
material.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3. %’%Eﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ&ikﬁ?
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL B (s A
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

EEERNEZERE - 8

- continued
(1)  Credit losses from financial instruments () £ TAEEEE-&
- continued

Measurement of ECLs - continued

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for fee receivable are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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ERSMBREEGRAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Measurement of ECLs - continued

For all other financial instruments
(including loan commitments), the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-
month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of default occurring on
the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group also considers both
quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

- continued

(@)

Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Significant increases in credit risk
- continued

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument's
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast changes in the
business, financial and economic
conditions that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to
meet its obligation to the Group;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations; and
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EReMEREE)FRAF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(1) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Significant increases in credit visk
- continued

- when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due (except for
accounts receivable from margin
clients where a shorter period of "past
due" has been applied by the directors
in view of the nature of business
operation and practice in managing the
credit risk).

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing
ECLs is considered to be the date that the
Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan
to which the loan commitment relates.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.
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EREMEREE)FRAH

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Definition of Default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors (this may be an indicator when
the instrument is more than 90 days past
due (except for accounts receivable from
margin clients where a shorter period of
"past due" has been applied by the
directors in view of the nature of business
operation and practice in managing the
credit risk), in full (without taking into
account any collateral held by the Group).

Credit-impaired asset and its basis of
calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised on financial
assets is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Credit-impaired asset and its basis of
calculation of interest income
- continued

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- substantial shortfall of the loan
balance versus the collateral held by
the Group while there is no concrete
repayment plan to reduce the shortfall;

- the lender, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to
the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

- the disappearance of an active market

for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Key parameters for expected credit losses

Depending on whether the credit risk is
significantly increased or credit-impaired,
the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount
equal to 12-month or lifetime expected
credit losses. The key parameters for
measuring expected credit losses for
financial assets other than fee receivable,
include the probability of default ("PD"),
loss given default ("LGD") and exposure
at default ("EAD"). The Group considers
the quantitative analysis of historical data
(such as the credit rating of counter
parties, ways of guarantee, the category of
collateral, and ways of repayment, etc.)
and forward-looking information, to
establish a model of PD, LGD, and EAD.

Methods that is used in the calculation of
expected credit losses

The Group considers PD/LGD impact on
measuring expected credit losses:

- PDis an estimate of the likelihood that
a borrower will be unable to meet its
debt obligations over the future 12
months or the whole remaining
lifetime. The Group estimates PD
based on the historical default data,
internal and external credit ratings and
forward-looking information, etc.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets

- continued

@)

Credit losses from financial instruments

- continued

Methods that is used in the calculation of
expected credit losses - continued

LGD is the estimated share of the
exposure at default that is lost when a
borrower defaults. LGD varies
depending on the category of
counterparties, ways and priority of
recourse, and the category of
collateral. LGD is the percentage of
loss when default occurs;

EAD is an estimation of the extent to
which the Group may be exposed to a
counterparty in the event of the
counterparty's default in the future 12
months or the whole remaining
lifetime;

Forward-looking information, both the
assessment of a significant increase in
credit risk and calculation of expected
credit losses include forward-looking
information. The Group identifies the
key economic factors affecting credit
risk and the expected credit losses of
different kinds of business based on
historical data analysis. The Group
forecasts economic factors periodically
and applies expert judgements to
determine the impact of forward-
looking information on PD, etc.

For margin loan, the Group make monthly
assessment on the borrower's credit risk
based on available information including
collateral maintenance ratio, concentration
ratio and overdue status.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(1)  Credit losses from financial instruments
- continued

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. Subsequent recoveries of an
asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the
recovery occurs.

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than properties carried at revalued
amounts);

- intangible assets; and

- right-of-use assets.
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BEREHIER(EB)ARAT

3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Impairment of other assets - continued

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent
basis, or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Credit losses and impairment of assets
- continued

(i) Impairment of other assets - continued

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the
asset's carrying amount that would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are recognised
when the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses as determined below:

The loss allowance of accounts receivable from
margin clients is measured at 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The loss allowance of fee receivable is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which are those losses that are expected to occur
over the expected life. The loss allowance is
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Accounts and other receivables - continued

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
with any changes recognised as an impairment
loss or reversal in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of accounts and other receivables
through a loss allowance account.

The gross carrying amount of a trade debtor or
other receivables is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component

of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of

the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Emplovee benefits

(i) Employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans and the cost

of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where

payment or settlement is deferred and the

effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the

earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Employee benefits - continued

(iii) Share-based payments

The Company granted shares to its
employees. The fair value of share
awards granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity
measured. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the stock price of Huatai
Securities Co., Ltd, the ultimate holding
company of the Company, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon
which the awards were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares, the
total fair value of the shares is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the awards will vest.

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023, including amounts paid to Company's
directors, amounted to HK$20,742,274 (2022:
HK$25,620,326).

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of
current and deferred income tax expenses.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit/(loss) before tax because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Income tax - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the same
time of the transaction does not give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Income tax - continued

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Current/deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxation entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax
treatments, the Group considers whether it is
probable that the relevant tax authority will
accept the uncertain tax treatment used, or
proposed to be use by individual group entities
in their income tax filings. Ifit is probable, the
current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income
tax filings. Ifitis not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment, the effect of each uncertainty is
reflected by using either the most likely amount
or the expected value.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Present obligations arising under onerous
contracts are recognised and measured as
provisions. An onerous contract is considered
to exist where the Group has a contract under
which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefits expected to be received from
the contract. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from
the contract, which is the lower of the net cost
of fulfilling it and any compensation or
penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
"control" of the services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group's performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

- the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
distinct service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERJAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers
- continued

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating
to a contract are accounted for and presented on
a net basis.

Description of the Group's performance
obligations of main source of income under the
scope of HKFRS 15 is as follows:

(i) Brokerage and commission income

The Group provides broking and dealing
services in securities and other products
such as bonds. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time on the
execution date of the trades at a certain
percentage of the transaction value of the
trades executed or at a fixed amount.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
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- continued

Revenue from contract with customers

- continued

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

Handling fee income

The Group provides handling services and
platform services. Fee income is
recognised when the transaction is
executed and service is completed.

Placing and underwriting commission

The Group provides placing, sponsoring
and underwriting services to customers for
their fund raising activities in capital
markets. Revenue is recognised when the
relevant placing, sponsoring or
underwriting activities are completed.
Accordingly, the revenue is recognised at
a point in time.

Financial management income

The Group provides asset management
services. The fee arrangements are based
on a percentage applied to customers'
assets under management or an agreed fee.
The performance obligation is satisfied
over time because the customer is
receiving and consuming the benefits as
they are provided by the Group.

Advisory fee income

The Group provides financial advisory
services. Fee income is recognised when
the transaction is executed and service is
completed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Revenue from contract with customers
- continued

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable
consideration, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled
using the most likely amount.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether
an estimate of variable consideration is
constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting
period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Financial assets held under resale and sold
under repurchase agreements

Financial assets held under resale agreements
are transactions where the Group acquires
financial assets which will be resold at a
predetermined price at a future date under
resale agreements. Financial assets sold under
repurchase agreements are transactions where
the Group sells financial assets which will be
repurchased at a predetermined price at a future
date under repurchase agreements.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Financial assets held under resale and sold
under repurchase agreements - continued

The cash advanced or received is recognised as
amounts held under resale or sold under
repurchase agreements in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Assets held
under resale agreements are recorded in
memorandum accounts as off-balance sheet
items. Assets sold under repurchase
agreements continue to be recognised in
consolidated the statement of financial
position.

The difference between the purchase and resale
consideration, and that between the sale and
repurchase consideration, is amortised over the
period of the respective transaction using the
effective interest method and is included in
interest income and interest expenses
respectively.

Lease

(i) Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on
or after the date of initial application or
arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued
(i) The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to
components of a contract

The Group applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from
lease component, and instead account for
the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of office
premises and office equipment that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis or another systematic basis over
the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued

(i) The Group as a lessee ~ continued
Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

- the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by
the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred
by the Group in dismantling and
removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. They
are grouped under Fixed Asset and
categorised as "Right-of-use assets".

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued
(ii) The Group as a lessee - continued
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are
accounted under HKFRS 9 and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments relevant to the Group
include:

- fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable; and

- payments of penalties for terminating
a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

— 174 —

SEBEAEEAN - &
BB Bt

EfTHI LRI iR e SR IETE
AR RS HERUZE 9 SR N BRI AT B
AP ERTE. RVIRHERREEA
FEIEITRISEE, SRR

BT, WERAEREEEN
A o
FHE AR

EEEMBAY, AEETERY
H AR ST R AR B AT FOR (B RERR KX
ArEME AR, ERTEMEMNSE
{ERE, iR e e A B RS A
%, ASREREER S B AT
BRI AT HL.

EASBMEEE M R

- BEEMFR(EEEEE ET)
BOEWBHEEE, X

A 2

- AR E RIS (A B R EGE
B A SR (B T AT A& L A HER)

- 88 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERE

RRFE R () B IR A A

BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued

(i1)) The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities - continued

After the commencement date, lease
liabilities are adjusted by interest accretion
and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease
modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases
increases by an amount commensurate
with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price
to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not
accounted for as a separate lease, the
Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Lease - continued
(i1) The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease modifications - continued

The Group accounts for the
remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the
modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those arising from foreign
currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Translation of foreign currencies - continued

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each
reporting period. Specifically:

- For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the
"Foreign exchange gain" line item (note 6)
as part of the "Other income";
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Translation of foreign currencies - continued

- For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI
that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences on the
amortised cost of the debt instrument are
recognised in profit or loss in the "Foreign
exchange gain" line item (note 6) as part of
the "Other income". As the foreign
currency element recognised in profit or
loss is the same as if it was measured at
amortised cost, the residual foreign currency
element based on the translation of the
carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised
in other comprehensive income in the fair
value through other comprehensive income/
revaluation reserve; and

- For financial assets measured at FVTPL that
are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the "net gain
on financial assets measured at fair value"
line item (note 5) as part of the "revenue".

For financial liabilities that are denominated in
a foreign currency and are measured at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting
period, the foreign exchange gains and losses
are determined based on the amortised cost of
the instruments. These foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in the profit or loss in
the "Exchange gain/(loss)" line item (note 6) as
part of the "Other income" in respect of
financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. For those
which are designated as a hedging instrument
for a hedge of foreign currency risk, foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in a separate component of equity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Translation of foreign currencies - continued

The fair value of financial liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period. For financial liabilities that
are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part
of a designated hedging relationship.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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3.  BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Related parties

(2)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person's family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member); or

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party; or

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity; or
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BASIS OF PREPARATIONS OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
- continued

Related parties - continued
(b) - continued

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group; or

. (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a); or

(vii) aperson identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a
Group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group's
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
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4.  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of level 3 unlisted financial
instruments, derivative instruments and
other non-trading securities (which
classification is based on the accounting
policies as disclosed in note 3 above) are
significantly affected by the combination
of valuation methodologies employed, the
parameters used and, if required, the
related comparable companies chosen.
The valuation methodologies, key
assumptions and the source of parameters
adopted by the Group are discussed in
note 38.

(i) Impairment allowances of financial assets
classified as stage 3

The Group uses various models and
assumptions in estimating ECL.
Judgement is applied in identifying the
most appropriate model for each type of
asset, as well as for determining the
assumptions used in these models,
including assumptions that relate to key
drivers of credit risk.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

- continued

(i1)) Impairment allowances of financial assets
classified as stage 3 - continued

In assessing the lifetime ECL on
individual credit-impairment financial
assets classified as stage 3, the Group
performed the assessment based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
borrowers, general economic conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions with significant
judgement involved. The Group also
reviews the value of the collateral received
from the customers in determining the
impairment. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.
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REVENUE

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope
of HKFRS 15:
Brokerage and commission income
Handling fee income
Placing and underwriting commission
Financial management and advisory fee income

Income within the scope of HKFRS 9:

Interest income from;
- margin clients calculated using the effective
interest method
- cash clients and IPO financing

- debt securities and financial assets
- financial assets held under resale agreements
and securities borrowing and lending agreements
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value

Changes in fair value of joint venture during the year
Dividend income from trading equities
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LON
L ON:DPap g I

BT BRE
RIS 15 SETEEA
kBEEREHBN:
R AERA
FHEEEA
BoEs RRER AU
BIAEE I RASR BRI

FEMHREER
3% 0 SRHIE AT
8 LT SRR BN
- ERARBREEREL
REEEF
-REFFRER
AHEERE
-EREERE bEREE
-BEARESEEE
LEFEE
EATEAESMTE
Wz AR
FEREELENTEE
FELHRENREZ
B2 A

The Group
FEH

2023 2022

HKS HKS$§

i T
146,036,177 138,039,325
46,575,873 40,291,843
225,460,852 462,207,839
50,222,259 90,716,047
468,295,161 731,255,054
205,295,045 121,513,780
2,017,053 1,863,731
6,972,302 5,279,593
14,624,269 568,344
626,351,641 833,273,643

(409,176,522)

(176,903,152)

62,795,234 74,133,251
508,879,022 859,729,190
977,174,183 1,590,984,244
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6.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income from:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

- Authorized financial institutions
- Others

Foreign exchange gain
Management fee income from fellow subsidiaries

Interest income from immediate holding company

Sundry income

STAFF COSTS

Salaries, bonus and allowances
Contribution to retirement schemes
Share-based payment expenses
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FAYA

F BN

T AR NER Y
EMEE
- WA SRS
- HAth

E S
o 2 P R 4 7
AR

R EER AT
FHBAO
HETBB

B TRA

Fre. SEETEM
IR #I LK
LARR 45 RRE BRI STAY

The Group
FEE

2023 2022

HK$ HKS$

T T
85,398,506 31,459,494
16,402,789 8,693,198
101,801,295 40,152,692
74,075,000 486,856,465
744,624,014 828,858,499

2,011,355,524

1,211,730,745

17,461,535 5,337,754
2,949,317,368  2,572,936,155
The Group
EEH
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
T BT
1,150,425,771  1,392,721,856
8,951,643 7,616,907
6,345,645 10,765,846

1,165,723,059

1,411,104,609
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8.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on inter-company loans and balances
Interest expense on debt securities issued
Interest expense to banks

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest expense to clients

Others

(REVERSAL OF)/PROVISION FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES

An analysis of (reversal of)/provision for
expected credit loss is as follows:

(Reversal of)/provision for expected credit loss on:
- Accounts receivable from margin clients
- Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
- Others

An analysis of other operating expenses is as
follows:

Legal and professional fee

IT and communication expenses
Marketing expenses

Others
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nj

B A

AR BB ERIF R

RETEEREFNFE
SATERATHI R
AEAERNE
AEPFE

Hith

The Group
FEE

2023 2022

HKS$ HKS

T T
749,070,783 754,638,215
1,142,240,949 717,040,692
44,597,947 6,869,476
6,954,148 2,790,338
2,202,924 2,225,417
50,995,820 12,386,954

1,996,062,571

1,495,951,092

TEHME B IR(E )/ E e

FEARAE S &

TEHE B AR (5 B/ H s r 0 At

HMERESEEE) 85

- RELE R EBUSER
- BATFEEA LR

W NERAY SR E
- Hitb

HAtacs ZRP T

BERNEEEM

5 BB A
TSR ST

Hit

The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
(6,353,129) 39,882,004
(110,011) 110,011
(245,143) 7,099,306
(6,708,283) 47,091,321
The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
213,236,417 251,096,796
263,704,644 169,131,641
156,553,383 140,176,238
281,633,000 126,810,830
915,127,444 687,215,505
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10.

11.

(LOSS)/ PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after
charging:

Depreciation
- owned property, plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets

Amortisation charge of intangible assets

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a) Taxation charged to profit or loss

represents:

Current tax - income tax
Provision for the year - Hong Kong

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax expense

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for 2023 is calculated at 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year.

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is
charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

10.

11.
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BT (&5 48) i A
FERT(E58)/ A SNk T 7% IH:

The Group
AEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
I o
e
-, BB 56,082,585 49,134,617
-EHEEE 87,448,624 76,267,201
- ST E E S 13,275,661 4,950,606
156,806,870 130,352,424
Nl b

(a) NBRIRZE PR HIRTR &

The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
I iy
A RARRIE - FT193R
EFRHE - B 6,925.272 24,326,000
TR FEFR IR
TR = B R A A AN ] 1,067,571 8,087,548
MIBH A5 7,992,843 32,413,548

2023 FEF AT EALAE N EFERF
MW LIFZ 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) &f
®.

Y A1 D B ) 4 I 2 ) ) B BRAR
BAnIE.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
- continued

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
countries concerned

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of unused
tax losses

Actual tax expense

11.
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AR - 48

(o) HRIER LRGP

HHER:

FRT(ES18)/ R

HIRIEAR M E HIE A
R HAR A (518)/
BRI 2 BIIE

AETINEI EAIFRIE
-2

BIEFH IR FRIE
wa

Al AT B SRR
IERANRIER S

F AR RFRIEE R
mRIER Y

TIRFIER ST

The Group
FE£E
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
ET BT
(300,520,110) 392,205,448
35,984,249 64,713,899
103,914,605 357,898,686
(130,849,371) (386,357,974)
197,743 -
(1,254,383) (3,841,063)
7,992,843 32,413,548
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> ¥/
12. FIXED ASSETS 12. BEE&E
The Group AEE
Land and
buildings held
by own use Furniture,
carried fixtures and Right-of-use
at fair value Motor car equipment assets Total
AR
NERFFEEA FRE. EHE
TS R HEREME 3 skl
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
T T EpTn T T
Cost or valuation: AR E
At 1 January 2022 202241 A1 H 16.180,000 1,389,000 213,292,017 293,188,333 524,049,350
Additions HE - 819,898 27,489,425 54,239,284 82,548,607
Disposals BE - - (244,045) - (244,045)
Deficit on revaluation BEEE (2,955,000) - - - (2.955.000)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A 31 A 13,225,000 2,208,898 240,537,397 347,427,617 603,398,912
Representing: R&:
Cost A - 2,208,898 240,537,397 347,427,617 590,173,912
Valuation - 2022 fli{H - 2022 4F 13,225,000 . - - - 13,225,000
At 1 January 2023 20231418 13.225,000 2,208,898 240,537,397 347,427,617 603,398,912
Additions ME - - 71,123,587 184,630,143 255,753,730
Disposals ®E - - (13.826,044) - (13.826,044)
Disposal of interest in I B RS 8 ) 2 i B
a subsidiary - - (324.662) - (324,662)
Write off - - - (175.864,759) (175.864,759)
Deficit on revaluation (1.250.000) - - - (1,250,000)
At 31 December 2023 20235 12 A 31 8 11,975,000 2,208,898 297,510,278 356,193,001 667,887,177
Representing: %
Cost A - 2.208,898 297,510,278 356,193,001 655.912,177
Valuation - 2023 fii{H - 2023 4F 11,975,000 - - - 11,975,000
Accumulated REHrH.
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2022 M2 118 - 1,389,000 106,439,327 153,119,438 260,947,765
Charge for the year ASE S 7 1 - 45550 49,089,067 76,267,201 125,401,818
Disposals BE - - (244,045) - (244.,045)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A 318 - 1,434,550 155.284,349 229.386,639 386,105,538
At 1 January 2023 20231 H1H - 1,434,550 155,284,349 229,386,639 386,105.538
Charge for the year AAEE T - 273299 55,809,286 87.448.624 143,531,209
Disposals BRE - - (13,826,044) - (13,826,044)
Disposal of interest in A A PR A R Z 4D
a subsidiary - - (164,717) - (164,717)
Write off s - - - (175.864,759) (175,864.,759)
At 31 December 2023 7202341231 H - 1,707,849 197,102,874 140,970,504 339,781,227
Net book value: AR M :
At 31 December 2023 2023 124318 11.975,000 501,049 100,407,404 215,222,497 328,105,950
At 31 December 2022 20224212 431 B 13,225,000 774,348 85,253,048 118,040,978 217,293,374
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12.

FIXED ASSETS - continued 12. BEBE-4&
Fair value measurement of properties ME AN EETE
Fair value hierarchy W E /B

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
20234 12 A 31 A
S AT AR TE A B WA

Fair value at

31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
#2023 48
12 531 AM
AT 1B H2RR HIRMER
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
I T T T
Recurring fair value HACH TR RN
measurement AVE
Self-occupied land and buildings [ERCRs:FEE Y] 11,975,000 11,975,000
Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2022 categorised into
%2022 12431 H
6008 LA R RN T R AL
Fair value at
31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2022 4
12 A 31 A
ATHE B 2R FIRBER
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
HETT HETT T T
Recurring fair value HEREERFE RN
measurement AFE
Self-occupied land and buildings A7 -t Fn gk 584y 13,225,000 13,225,000

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group's self-occupied land and
buildings were revalued as at 31 December 2023.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Hong Kong is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square foot basis using market data
which is publicly available.
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BZE 20234 12 H 31 HIEFEE, A% —
AL 58 J 4% 2 P A 4 H R AT A N P
¥, MEMLAAFEEBANE=BHIKE
FEBAEEH (2022 £ &), AEBERE
RN TE B 2 [ H IR R
e s R A A E)
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13.

14.

OTHER ASSETS

13.

Deposits with the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

("SEHK"):

- Compensation fund
- Default fund

- Fidelity fund

- Stamp duty

Deposits with the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Corporation

("HKSCC"):

- Admission fee

- Guarantee fund contribution
- Mainland security deposit

- Mainland settlement deposit

Deposits with the HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited

("HKCC"):
- Reserve fund
- Margin deposit

Deposits with the SEHK Options Clearing House Limited

("SEOCH"):
- Reserve fund

- Margin deposit with Derivatives Clearing and Settlement

Systems

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

14.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-
use assets by class of underlying asset is as

follows:

Properties leased for own use, carried at
depreciated cost

—191 -

HAhg ZE
The Group
AEEH
2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
B B
FBHARTRES:
-BREES 50,000 50,000
-ENES 27,722,029 73,271,038
-ERES 50,000 50,000
- ENTEFE 500,000 500,000
28,322,029 73,871,038
FHBFREFEFRAF
ReE4:
-AEE 50,000 50,000
- REBEEMHHK 27,254,641 27,254,641
- AMBHREE 10,385,651 13,567,885
- AHhiEEEE TS 13,185,110 22,620,763
50,875,402 63,493,289
EFHAEEEAT
ReES:
-HEES 1,500,000 1,500,000
-fRES 3,893,556 1,431,133
5,393,556 2,931,133
FiGHREEETRE
-HEES 12,618,753 1,500,000
-fTHEERBERTIR
REREE 41,082,802 1,128,454
53,701,555 2,628,454
138,292,542 142,923,914
R E
ARG EER ST AL EERTE
AT
The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
BTG &I
HESRNYE,
CLHTE A BN 215,222,497 118,040,978
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

14.

The analysis of expense items in relation to
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by
class
- properties leased for own use

Interest on lease liabilities

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets

were HK$184,630,143 (2022:
HK$54,239,284). This amount primarily

related to the capitalised lease payments under

new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out

in notes 23(c) and 25 respectively.

15. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

15.

The following list contains the particulars of

principal subsidiaries of the Group as of

31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.
The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Place of
Name of companies incorporation
NGIEEY: EEf AR LA
Held directly by the Company
HAEATEERT
Huatai Intemmational Finance Limited British Virgin
ZEREBHHEERAT Islands
KEEMR S
Pioneer Reward Limited British Virgin
Islands
N
Huatai International Financial British Virgin
Products Limited Islands
ERHEERS

Principal activities

Notes issuer

RiEskiTEH

Bonds issuer

SR EEAT 0

Structured products
issuer

RREEERRT
T

—-192 —

EHEEE- &

B NBH R EE R ERIER 2
T

The Group
EEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
BTt &I
G E B E 01
FREEENTEERR:
-MEBRAME 87,448,624 76,267,201
HEEERE 6,954,148 2,790,338

N, MRS E SIS
184,630,143 J6(2022: ¥ 54,239,284
J0). & EEFEEUREHEE R
EAWHEMNFEAHA.

HERSRBEENERENIEH S
Mr4y BIFE M EE 23(c)FR 25 FR 5 HY .

JE M 2~ FI RO 2

TR 2023 F 12 A 31 H X 2022 F
12 A 31 BAREENFENBAFFE.
BAERERE, AEBFEROGIER
PSR- Piili) e

Percentage of shares

held by the Group
BAKEFAN
Registered and paid up capital ji:Eo
RERLYE e to e
023 2022 2023 202
US$1.00 US$1.00 100% 100%
1.00 %75 1.00 %75
US$1.00 US$1.00 100% 100%
1.00 &% 1.00 7T
US$1.00 US$1.00 100% 100%
1.00 £57T 1.00 7T
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15.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued 15.

The table above lists out the subsidiaries of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. At the end of the
reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Transfer of a direct subsidiary

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company was the direct holding company of
Huatai International Private Equity Investment
Management Limited (previously known as
Huatai HK Investment (Cayman) Limited)
("the Transferee").

On 27 March 2023 ("the date of transfer"), the
Company transferred all its shares of the
Transferee to Huatai International Financial
Holdings Company Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$84,996,682.

On the date of transfer, all net assets of the
transferee are eliminated from the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In addition, the following investment funds are
consolidated into consolidated financial
statements of the Group. These consolidated
investment funds are not body corporates and
therefore do not have any registered or paid-up
register capital. All the below-mentioned
interest in consolidated investment funds are
held indirectly by the Company.
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FAMS B AR R -

ERINEAAFEFRR/EELELE
BEEREELAERNE AR . Kk
EHIR, ARFE B AREREN
AERWMB AR KAFREERR,
fi 71t KA B A 7l 25818, # R IR
BRI

HREEZEWNE AT

BZE 2022 4F 12 A 31 HIEEE, AAH
/% Huatai International Private Equity
Investment Management Limited
(previously known as Huatai HK Investment

(Cayman) Limited)( [53E 77| W E £
i/

R2023FE3 H27H, ([#EEH] ), &
N EGHFFE 2R T B e SRR iR
MARNTINBEEER AT % REEER
BRAERAT, BEEEAB 84,996,682
JTCo

JREEREH, SRR EEEE BARE M
BRI R P HEEH .

sesh, BT HREESFALEENLGEER
Bk, BERGREEeTIRTIA
¥, Rl SAEEEEREAR. TR
R EGEREEGER I HE LT M
BEHE.
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15. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES - continued  15. JAMBA R 2 -
Percentage of interest
Place of held by the Group
Naine of funds incorporation Principal activities Net asset value BHAEEEFAN
LA FENRAL AR 3k EEER BEE FER L
2023 2022 2023 2022
Huatai International Greater Bay Area Cayman Islands Investment holding US$47,960,557 US$38,125,211 100% 100%
Investment Fund I1, L.P. HERE was 47,960,557 3£ 7T 38,125,211 ETT
Huatai Special Opportunities Fund I, Cayman Islands Investment holding US$183,275,596 US$205,738,902  99.65% 99.65%
LP. HEEE REER 183,275,596 375 205,738,902 T
Huatai Value Investiment Fund L.P. Cayman Islands Investment holding US$67,203,516 US$124,436,387 99.65% 99.65%
HEHE Exig gl 67,203,516 %70 124,436,387 3£ T
AN KK 24
16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE 16. ReBahEziEn

The following list contains the particulars of
joint venture as of 31 December 2023 and
31 December 2022.

PLFRAIEEERZE 2023 4 12 4 31 HM
2022 FE 12 B 31 HAEBRNFESES
%uéﬁrﬁa

Percentage of interest

Name of company Place of incorporation held by the Group Principal activity
NGB A RIS HASE B A 1 TEED
HE S LE 2
2023 2022
Huatai International Cayman Islands 40% 40% Investment holding
Greater Bay Area MEHE wEER
Investment Fund, L.P.
The directors considered that the Group's KREFESSPERNTFELEIRNAIR.

interest in joint venture shall be measured at
fair value through profit or loss instead of
applying equity method as the principal
activity of its subsidiary holding these
investments is investment holding. There is
no unfilled capital commitment on the joint
venture as at 31 December 2023 and

FEDRE, AEERAECENERE
BN TEZE AR A RIS IEAN
RAAREZERENRB AT M EE
EHAREER, MEEELSEEAT
ESHEIHENER, WIFRAERE. A
2023 ££ 12 A 31 H A& 2022 5 12 A 31

31 December 2022 respectively and the fair H, ZAELXLERBETEREE,
values represent the maximum exposure on BAFREARLSSR S H B & oA B i
respective reporting dates. M.

- 108 -
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16.

INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURE
- continued

Summarised financial information of the
Group's joint venture, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies, and a

16. RAEEEEZIED - &

reconciliation to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

Gross amounts of the joint venture:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Curent liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

Reconciliation of carrying amounts

to the Group's interest in joint venture:
Carrying amount of joint venture as at 1 January
Capital injection

Changes in fair value of joint venture during the year
Dividend paid

Carrying amount of joint venture as at 31 December
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FEBGEEENTHRECRESS
PR 2 RIEITHE) UL AR S B R
AR RERIRET RN T -

HFBRELETBER:

REnEE
ERENEE
REAR
JERENRIR
3

RS FRARERNEE
ISR R

SEE¥EMNI1A 1B
BR4 %8

EON
ENEELEATFESH
SMBE

HEELEMIZANHZ
BRE4&HE

The Group
I ERE
2023 2022
HKS HKS$
T &I

1,052,228,657

1,052,228,657

2,075,139,110

2,075,139,110

830,055,644

(409,176,522)

1,006,958,796

(176,903,152)

420,879,122

830,055,644
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17.

FINANCIAL ASSETS/ (LIABILITIES) AT  17.

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments
- Listed
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed
- Unlisted

Funds (note (1))
- Listed

Convertible bonds
Total return swaps

Derivative assets (Note 18 (a))

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments
- Listed
Equity securities
- Listed
Total return swaps
Structured notes

Non-controlling interests (note (ii))

Derivative liabilities (Note 18 (a))
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A HEERES NRNSREE/ (RIB)

The Group
AEE
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
BATPERLER

NEREHEE
EHTLE

i) 283,774,623 152,109,433

-3k 2,187,928,261 2,314,968,611

2,471,702,884 2,467,078,044
R B _
) 7,801,628,164 7,566,706,276
-dEETH 1,046,756,828 1,020,062,897
8,848,384,992 8,586,769,173
e AUEEA0))

) 201,547,452 2,636,063
AR ES 68,675,572 119,745,586
W B 324,481,145 292,055,551
fTETAEE

(MIEE 18 () 132,102,099 111,454,841

12,046,894,144  11,579,739,258
A TERKERA

BRSRAR
E¥ LA

i) (5,505,119,096)  (2,235,433,007)

-k (7,777,218) -
& B (1,461,679,648)  (1,336,157,301)
HENERE (25,726,740,049)  (32,691,558,766)

AefEREER (PEEG)) (6,978,860)
MAETAARE

(FHEE 18 (a)) (202,393,505)

(9,233,762)

(9,580,929)

(32,910,688,376)

(36,281,963,765)
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17.

FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT 17.

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
- continued

Notes:

(i) The Group invested in investment funds
that are not consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group. The underlying investments of
these investment funds include bonds and
equities with primary objectives for
capital appreciation, investment gain, and
selling in near future for profits Pursuant
to the subscription agreements and/or
agreements entered between the Group
and investment managers or general
partners, the beneficial interest held by the
Group in these investments are in the
form of participating shares or units which
primarily provide the Group with the
share of returns from these investment
funds but not any decision making power
nor voting right to involve in and control
the daily operation.

These investment funds are set up and
managed by respective investment
managers or general partners who have
the power and authority to manage and
make decision for respective investment
funds.

These investment funds are classified
within "financial assets at fair value
through profit of loss". The current
carrying amounts as disclosed above
represent the maximum exposure as at

31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022. There were no unfilled capital
commitments to these investment funds as
at both year ends.
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FEBRERETWRFALGET
BRI REER. BEEGTE
BEAE SR FIE 2 2 UK A
BEWR AR ERNEEASEEHR
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ERLRR(EE)ERAT

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) AT 17.

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
- continued

Notes: - continued

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss includes certain investment
funds that are consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Classification of investments as
detailed above is based on investments by
these consolidated investment funds. The
Group had consolidated these investment
funds based on the criteria as set out in
note 3 where the Group acted as an
investment manager and is also an
investor. Based on the assessment on
those criteria, directors of the Company
concluded the Group is a principal in
respect of these investment funds.

Third party interests held was classified as
a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss based on the accounting
policy as set out in note 3. As at 31
December 2023, interests held by the third
party interests amounted to HK$6,978,860
(2022: HK$9,233,762).

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18.

(a)

Fair value of derivatives

The following is a summary of each
significant type of derivatives, without
taking into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.

Interest rate swaps FZ A
Futures and options contracts M RIPREE 4
Foreign exchange forwards TEIASMNE &4
Warrants and CBBCs AR R R Re e
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NFEERSANRPSEE/(BE)
]

fizE: - 48

(i) HEAFHEFFABRENEREETE

EE THAGEMRRIRAR
&o ERPTFEIIIE DR UZ
SEEREESHEANRERE
He, AEECRE MR TEUR &
PFRzsia e, RPAEEFZ
EREMREETENFHEE. R
BERZEHARAH, AoFER
%%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%&%%ﬁ%i%

REEIEE 3 TEE5TBUR, B=
THEA R ERIR A THEK
BRANRSmMERE. KR2023F12
A318, HEE=7ERFEMER
FERE B3R & (1 3R 4151 6,978,8607T
(20224F: #51%59,233,7627T).

T« TE

(a)

T AR ATE

TOIAF IR E B EIBFARAT H %
FRENTE T AERHAME.

The Group
A4
2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
W AfE 243 A
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
(Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 17)
(PHEE17) (PHEE 17) (F3E 17) (BEE 17)
59,761.418 (59.706,831) 57.204.271 (7.823.837)
71,180,780 (90,275.053) 54,250,570 (1.757.,092)
721,110 (18.231,948)
438,791 (34.179.673)
132,102,099 202,393,505 111,454.841 9.580,929
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
ERERIEREE)FRAT

19. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED  19. 4Z& BRI EBIIREITER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Tax payable in the consolidated (a) AFBMEIRERT R ERFRIE .
statement of financial position represents:

The Group
EEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
BT T

Provision for Profits Tax - Hong Kong g asE
- B 2,722,446 24,326,000
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

FEReMIZB(EE)ERAF

19.

20.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 19.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
- continued

(¢) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 3, the Group had
not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$41,197,314 (2022: HK$47,061,194)
as at 31 December 2023 as it was not
probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses
do not expire under current tax
legislations of the respective
subsidiaries.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20.

Advances to customers in margin financing
Accounts receivable from
- Cash and other clients
- Brokers and dealers
- Clearing houses
Fees and other receivables
Less: provision for expected credit losses:
- Advances to customers in margin financing
- Others

Analysed by the movement of provision for
impairment loss on advances to customers in margin financing:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Reversal of impairment

At the end of the year

Analysed by the stages of allowance for ECLs
on advances to customers in margin financing:

Stage |
Stage II
Stage II1

Total

—203 -

G A BRI R TSI TS -

(c) REEDHIRIEMIEL E

IEMEE 3 T & sl EUR, A&
EA2023F 12431 HARBE B
THES IR HEEE41,197,3147T (2022: 15
47,061,19470) MERRIRERIEE |

18 2 [ A 2R 3R AN AT BE I A AR R AR
THESIR B FTEARRE A VA R AT B 2
. RIESH B A F IRITRE,

FRIEE 18 NER B A PR 2.

JEUSBR K
The Group
e |
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
T T
REEEFREER 2,627,973,218 2,606,207,897
B ERIR
-BREREMER 515,680,751 642,065,685
- RS E 1,393,025,625 892,148,413
- EEFT 562,655,215 497,414,634
& R E AR EIRER R 118,311,629 106,147,208
B TARAEBRSIREE
REBEEFMEBR (38,694,611) (45,047,740)
- At (45,427,920) (45,631,898)

5,133,523,907 4,653,304,199

RESEFHARKER

BB IR EEE ST

EYEEER 45,047,740 5,165,736

FEER - 41,440,382

A ] (6,353,129) (1,558,378)

FERAEER 38,694,611 45,047,740

RIBEZPRE K

TR ERBERE

REER A HT:

B — 589,291 1,880,563

PEEr— 25,775,102 12,975,469

RE= 12,330,218 30,191,708

kL 38,694,611 45,047,740
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMERGEB)FRAF

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - continued 20.

Movements in the allowance for ECLs that
have been recognised for advances to

customers in margin financing are as follows:

2023
Asat 1 January 2023
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2023:
- Transfer from/to 12-month
ECL to/from lifetime ECL
- Net remeasurement of ECL
arising from transfer of stage
- Net remeasurement of ECL
without transfer of stage
- Repayments or derecognition
New lending

As at 31 December 2023

2022
As at 1 January 2022
Changes due to financial instruments
recognised as at 1 January 2022:
- Transfer from/to 12-month
ECL to/from lifetime ECL
- Net remeasurement of ECL
arising from transfer of stage
- Net remeasurement of ECL
without transfer of stage
- Repayments or derecognition
New lending

As at 31 December 2022

e

SRR
BERZEn T

JEWERK - 48
P RA SRR I TERAE

2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Total
s B — FEER —
FE12BAMN i}
AN FRAE R R TR BEIR WA
HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS$
TG W HEIC Wt
2023
202341318 1.880,563 12,975.469 30,191,708 45,047,740
202341 A1 A
SRb T AT
FHEIR
T /2 A7 A TS B R (614,879) (1,124,865) 1,739,744 -
i T A= 11
BEFEHREE 622,327 772.592 (254,935) 1,139,984
B dFS T 1
3 HE R 9,756 10,153.537 (19,365,174) (9,201,881)
(1,616,468) (1,516,032) (5.116) (3.137.616)
307.992 4,514.401 23,991 4,846,384
2023412 A 31 H 589.291 25,775,102 12,330,218 38,694,611
2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
P Bt — - MEER=
FA 124A N 174U
BUHE RS HR TN E R “axt
HKS$ HKS HKS
& TT T TG
2022
202241 A1 H 2,352,045 138,775 2,674,916 5,165,736
20229 1H1H
TiERE Ay TR
- S 12 B A MY TE
[LE=VEREE (669,196) 3,170.445 (2.501,249) -
- BEER IR P A A2 00
TR B R B AT IR AR (9,093) 3,061,113 5,662 3,057.682
- 10 40 BLMAS TR m
TS R AS R T AR AR 4,639 (51,829) 35942 (11,248)
B EREER AL TER (1.467,088) (69,042) (22,248) (1,558,378)
FiaEie 1,669,256 6,726,007 29,998,685 38,393,948
20224512 31 H 1.880,563 12,975,469 30,191,708 45,047,740
-118 -
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20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES - continued 20.

Accounts receivable from cash and other
clients, including amounts that are not settled
after settlement dates at 31 December 2023
are current or aged within 30 days. These
balances related to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Margin loans due from margin clients are
current and repayable on demand. Margin
clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain
credit facilities for securities trading. The
amount of credit facilities granted to them is
determined by the discounted value of
securities accepted by the Group. At

31 December 2023, the total market value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of
the loans to margin clients was approximately
HK$16,975,838,230 (2022:
HK$12,869,602,501). No aging analysis is
disclosed as in the opinion of the directors,
the aging analysis is not meaningful in view
of the revolving nature of loans due from
margin clients.

Accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers are current. These
represent pending trades arising from the
business of dealing in securities, which are
normally due within a few days after the trade
date. Amounts that are not settled after
settlement dates at 31 December 2023 and

31 December 2022 are generally aged within
1 year.

Fee and other receivables are with settlement
terms which are determined in accordance
with contract terms. These receivables that
are overdue as at 31 December 2023 included
HK$836,234 (2022: HK$5,866,459) that are
181-365 days past due; HK$45,009,802
(2022: HK$42,698,668) that are more than 1
year past due. The related estimated loss rate
of these receivables are 50% and 100%
(2022: 50% and 100%) respectively.

—205 -

EURR K - 4

BUOR & K H A2 P RAREN (BE1EAS
HHBRMAGEERNEH) R 2023 F 12 A
31 B &RV HE R B IR ES & 30 RN,
AZEAE AR BB BRI RER
FHH.

BN R 2 P RIRE Bk A R K 4%
EREIE. RESFFERAERLE
FEATETR, URBHEZSERGEE
Mg . BTESEREMESFRIEAER
BN SSELIR S EEEE . TR 2023 4
12 A 31 H, siMRESEFIRHER
TS E AR TGN &
% 16,975,838,230 JC (2022 & B
12,869,602,501 7T). ZEHERAERE DT
MEWRBEE P RESERITER
HETMS I EEE, W EFERS S
BT

JBIRAEFLAT . &aC 3T 5 R A Rl
HFER], FEREBEEBFEBHNGTSE
HEBERXS, — AR S B%BEH N
HA. 220234 12 A 31 H & 2022 4 12
H 31 HM&EE HBE HREE MR, K
IRES— A —FEN,

B R HAREWERRIEFE S H AR 2R
BERGREE. BYR 2023 F 12 A
31 HIsHAR EUS R IE B FE 18 HA 181-365
RHTHE 836,234 T1(2022 5. MK
5,866,459 J0) K@ HR—F DL L gy
45,009,802 JG(2022 £E: #E#E 42,698,668
T0). 1B LB ERIER AR AL ET R R
A& 50%F1 100% (2022 F: 50%F0
100%).
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21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Non-current
Debt instruments

Allowance for credit loss

Analysed by the movement of provision for impairment loss:

At the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Reversal of impairment

At the end of the year

Analysed by the stages of allowance for ECLs:

Stage [
Stage II
Stage III

Total

Movements in the allowance for ECLs that
have been recognised are as follows:

2023 2023
As at 1 January 2023 2023 1818
Changes due to financial 2023515 1H
instruments recognised as WA T ANES:
at 1 January 2023:
- Repayments or derecognition - B IR IEFERR

As at 31 December 2023 FA2023F 12 A 318

21, Ha-PEERAEmE RN EEEE

JEWEY
EHBTE

RS R EE

ERIBHEREGEES N

FAEER
REFHR
RAE R

EREEE

TRH(E RSB RA R B

BB —
=
B =

#ER

The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HK§ HKS
E T
150,684,188
110,011
110,011 -
- 110,011
(110,011) -
110,011
110,011
- 110,011

CHERRH TR E B R R E I T

2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
MR — FEER =
RE1REANA FERA FEN
BAEREE TREAEE SR TREAEEEE HE
HKS$ HKS§ HKS$ HK$
T BT BT BT
110,011 110,011
(110,011) (110,011)
- 120 -
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21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME - continued

2022 2022
As at 1 January 2022 2022 1A 18
New assets originated or purchased ~— H Z BN RFEE

As at 31 December 2022 #2022 12 31 H

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Non-current
Deposits

Current

Other receivables
Cash collateral paid
Deposits
Prepayments

Total

Except for the non-current deposits of
HK$19,770,118 (2022: HK$8,390,028), all of
the deposits, prepayments and other
receivables classified as current assets are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

ey 7 5773 ;LL\. =1 ol
21, HaPEKEMEEREANRNESRE E
- 48
2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Total
B — PEER— PR =
FE12EAR TEHEH T
EHEEERE TR (E RS FEAAEEIEE “EEt
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
110,011 110,011
110,011 110,011
S == =+
22. &4, TRATERIE R HEAREUER
The Group
FEH
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
T T
JEWE)
& 19,770,118 8,390,028
b/
H AR 9,468,388 71,245,483
SR ERESE 92,938,368 3,455,259
& 11,911,830 16,188,823
FE{THRIR 24,228,567 7,380,797
138,547,153 98,270,362
“EZE 158,317,271 106,660,390

—207 -

W4 HE &K 19,770,118 62022 4E:
# 8,390,028 JL)WFERBIIZ &L, FRAR
RETEEWTE RS, TBAHRIELEM
JEBGRTRET HE A —F I B B BB 8 2

He

B
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23.

CASH AND DEPOSITS 23.

(a)

(b)

Cash and deposits comprise:

Cash at bank and on hand

Cash and cash equivalents

At the reporting date, the Group
maintained client trust monies of
HK$2,572,093,867 (2022:
HK$3,056,637,129) and none (2022:
Nil) in segregated bank accounts in
accordance with the provision of Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Client
Money) Rules ("Client Money Rules")
and Section 71 of the Hong Kong
Insurance Ordinance respectively.
Client monies were not included in the
cash and deposits of the Group.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

The following table details changes in
the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for
which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing
activities.

—208 —

IREMAFR
(a) IHEMFEHETE:
The Group
ZEH

2023 2022

HKS HKS$

BT It
SBRITHERERE 2,794,266,488 4,195,388,682
REMRE%EEY 2,794,266,488 4,195,388,682

(b)

REREH, AEBZBEE (BF
FHEE (BFFIR) HRD) (LTS
B TREPHIEHRA R (CEERE
B B TUARERERLIRIT
BR P NN S B Rk IE 2 ) i i
2,572,093,867 JG (2022 £F: WEHE
3,056,637,129 JT ¢ f%(2022 4F:
). ZPEERELACELER
HIIREMARA .

R BE SN E AN B B BRR:

TRIEAERHMEFEEEEN
BELEE, 8FEHEsL A RE
3. RAMBEEELNAMHE
EAEENGEReERERNDE
FHABEESELENRSREEAR
RIRe T EE LR AR,
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
HER G (EB)ERAE

23. CASH AND DEPOSITS - continued 23. REMGER-4E
(c) Total cash outflow for leases: (c) FHEHEMHBAELE:
Amounts included in the cash flow HEeERERPEHFMHEMLLITKIE:
statement for leases comprise the
following:
The Group
A EEE
2023 2022
HKS HK$
BT T
Within operating cash flows EREBRERNA - -
Within investing cash flows ERERERNA - -
Within financing cash flows EHERERA 88,235,800 69,457,540
88,235,800 69,457,540
24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24. JETERFK
The Group
ZEH
2023 2022
HKS HK$
BT T
Accounts payable to: JEATEREK
- Cash clients -REER 1,554,219,113 1,960,031,590
- Margin clients -RBEEF 1,583,762,312 1,443,199,817
- Futures clients -HEER 2,640,344 4,063,784
- Asset management clients -BEEHER 1,118,177 39,555,691
- Clearing houses - T 358,589,361 342,747,944
- Brokers B4 137,334,017 389,710,658
3,637,663,324 4,179,309,484
All of the accounts payable are expected to A FEATER SR FEHAA —FE NVE BB I Bk
be settled within one year or repayable on BB, HEEHEMEALEEATFE.

demand, and their carrying amounts are their
estimated fair values.

-125-
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25.

26.

27.

LEASE LIABILITIES 25.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities of the Group's lease

HEAR

TRES TAEENHEE AR GG
#iH:

liabilities:

2023 2022
Present Total Present Total
value of the minimum value of the minimum
minimum lease minimum lease
lease ;gayments gayments IEBSC 23¥ll\ent5 L ayments
RACHE RIKAE RACH & BACHE
{ AR {HERARAR N fEHRERIR A By
HKS HKS HKS HKS$
e EST I T
Within 1 year 14X 89,102,358 96,987.292 33,087,648 34,756,264
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ELAE 2 £ 91,959,776 90,764,043 36,047,602 37,197,479
After 2 years but within 5 years 2B 5 4R 45,823,709 46,679,189 60.225,498 60,897,014
137,783,485 137,443,232 96,273,100 98,094,493
226,885,843 234,430,524 129,360,748 132,850,757
Less: total future interest expenses e EETRSY 4R (7,544,681) (3.490.009)
Present value of lease liabilities FE AGEUE 226,885,843 129,360,748
7 =+ =
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. FHAMEATRR B E
The Group
ZFEH
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
Non-current E| )]
Employee benefits B THEHR 685,603,003 487,972,167
Current JRE)
Margin deposits ReE 2,604,059,995 1,637,540,579
Employee benefits BTEF 796,766,657 1,017,503,093
Accrued expenses TEIRE M 107,303,895 86,818,087
Other payables HAbESER 254,809,646 196,202,501
3,762,940,193 2,938,064,260
4,448,543,196 3,426,036,427
4 o TAT 27 M
DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 27. CEITEBESR
The Group
FEE
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
T I
Non-current JeRE
- bonds (note (i)) - E#3) 31,636,998,197 25,319,047,320
Current JRED
- bonds (note (1)) -EFH3E) - -
- medium term notes (note (ii)) - REAEE (D) 9,599,066,512 8,489,843,192

—-212 -

9,599,066,512

8,489,843,192

41,236,064,709

33,808,890,512
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED
EREMIEREE)FRATE

27. DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED - continued 27. BEITEEES-E
Notes: B & .

(i) Asof31 December 2023, the Group (i) A20234F 12 H31H, KEEE

(ii)

issued bonds of HK$31,636,998,197
(2022: HK$25,319,047,320) which are
guaranteed by Huatai Securities Co.,
Ltd., with aggregate nominal amounts
of US$3,600,000,000 and
CNY3,025,000,000 (2022:
US$2,800,000,000 and
CNY3,275,000,000) The bonds are
unsecured with effective interest rates
ranging from 1.43% to 6.33% (2022:
1.43% to 4.65%).

As of 31 December 2023,
HK$31,636,998,197 (2022:
HK$25,319,047,320) were classified as
non-current based on remaining
maturities.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group
issued notes of HK$9,599,066,512
(2022: HK$8,489,843,192) under the
US$3,000,000,000 Medium Term Note
Programme which are guaranteed by
Huatai International Financial Holdings
Company Limited, with aggregate
nominal amounts of HK$904,000,000,
US$965,000,000 and
CNY1,050,000,000 (2022:
HK$1,284,000,000, US$859,000,000
and CNY440,000,000). The notes are
unsecured with effective interest rates
ranging from 3.84% to 6.61% (2022:
2.35% to 6.3%) with maturity within 1
year.

—-213 -

ITHEEE 31,636,998,197 TT(2022:
¥ 25,319,047,320 J0) A EEIRIF(E
%, BEFERE143%E 6.33%
(2022: 1.43%% 4.65%), EHH%E
REBHFRDARAFRMER. 2
EITEFL RSB
3,600,000,000 3£ 7t & 3,025,000,000
A #(2022: 2,800,000,000 3 71
K 3,275,000,000 A E#5).

HE2023F 12 431 H, K
31,636,998,197 JG(2022: M
25,319,047,320 Ju) 1% TR HAIR 748
RIEMENL EE -

B 20234 12 A 31 H, A%EBEHE
# 3,000,000,000 3 T HIH A2 485
BT S RRARER B
9,599,066,512 J6(2022:
8,489,843,192 JL)H MEARIF 24, &H
BRI A 3.84%% 6.61% (2022:
2.35% & 6.3%), P HIEEEE
HERBE RIS A R A T R4
R, CRTEBLELHEES
904,000,000 TG+ 965,000,000
%515 1,050,000,000 A B %8

(2022: ¥ 1,284,000,000 JT-
859,000,000 3£ 7T % 440,000,000 A
K, FIMEHMAE—FEN.
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

At 1 January and
31 December

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the

Company's residual assets.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group

COST
At 1 January 2023
Additions

At 31 December 2023

ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION

At 1 January 2023

Charge for the year

At 31 December 2023

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023

28. fRA
2023 2022
No. of shares No. of shares Amount
B A BHE ol
HK$
T
EETRMITER.
WIA1AR
HI12A31H 8.800,000,000 8.800,000,000 8.800,000.000 8.800.000,000
e R B R R AR BIRAVAR 2.
WERAERAATEEE —ZEN. E
BB AARAFRIEIEGRE E HHEE F
EEHLAT
29. BEZE
AEEE
Trading Computer
rights software Total
THHE A ARt gl
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
RA
2023 1H1H 470,000 39,296,192 39,766,192
HBE - 49,984,841 49,984,841
JA2023F 12 H 31 H 470,000 89,281,033 89,751,033
B2023FE1H1H - (5,864,448) (5,864,448)
AR PSR - (13,275,661)  (13,275,661)
B2023F 12 H31 H - (19,140,109) (19,140,109)
IRMEEE
#2023 4% 12 A 31 H 470,000 70,140,924 70,610,924
2023 1A 1H 470,000 33,431,744 33,901,744
-128 -
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HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

ERGHMIZERER)ERLA

29.

30.

BILEE - &

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - continued 29,
COST A
At 1 January 2022 A2022F1H1H
Additions g
At 31 December 2022 JA2022F 12 A 31 H
ACCUMULATED BETHEeY
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2022 A202F181H
Charge for the year AR T EE
At 31 December 2022 R 2022F 12 A 31 H
CARRYING VALUE BRMEEE
At 31 December 2022 2022 12 A 31 H
At 1 January 2022 A202F1H1H
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER 30.
RESALE AGREEMENTS

As part of the reverse repurchase agreements,
the Group has received securities that it is
allowed to sell or re-pledge in the absence of
default by their owners. If the collateral
received declines in value, the Group may, in
certain circumstances, require additional
collateral. The Group has an obligation to
return the collateral to its counterparties at the
maturity of the contracts. As at 31 December
2023, the Group received securities as
collateral with total fair value of
HK$137,039,800 (2022: HK$142,629,371)
on these terms.

—-215 -

Trading Computer
rights software Total
CHE  EHEEEE it
HKS HK$ HK$
BT T T
470,000 3,020,812 3,490,812
- 36,275,380 36,275,380
470,000 39,296,192 39,766,192
- (913,842) (913,842)
- (4,950,606) (4,950,606)
- (5,864,448) (5,864,448)
470,000 33,431,744 33,901,744
470,000 2,106,970 2,576,970
BNREGREENK

KEEREENREREFENESE
RY), TEEEDES NEBALELNE
AT LA A & KB IRIER. WREF
EHEEDEMET®, AEETREEE
DU AT DAESRIE e R . AEEBW &
BEEFRARESERDRIERHF
HIEH%. Bub 20234 12 A 31 H, A&
B EFERY AP EASBE
137,039,800 75(2022: ##E 142,629,371
JB).
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31.

32.

FINANCIAL ASSETS SOLD UNDER 31.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Repurchase agreements are transactions in
which the Group sells a security and
simultaneously agrees to repurchase it (or an
asset that is substantially the same) at the
agreed date and price. The repurchase prices
are fixed and the Group is still exposed to
substantially all the credit risks, market risks
and rewards of those securities sold. These
securities are not derecognised from the
consolidated financial statements but regarded
as "collateral" for the liabilities because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of these securities.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group entered
into repurchase agreements with financial
institutions to sell equities with total carrying
amount of HK$54,552,140 (2022:
HK$94,188,118), which are subject to the
simultaneous agreements to repurchase these
investments at the agreed date and price.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 32.

COMPENSATION

On 29 March 2021, 3,258,992 share awards
were granted to employees of the Company
under the employee share award scheme. The
employees under the scheme are rewarded
with ordinary shares of Huatai Securities Co.,
Ltd., the ultimate holding company of the
Company. These share awards will vest from
2 to 4 years after grant date.

—216 —

B RS E AR

F R AARE N ERT A ARRE
&1 B 3 R B R B 8 27 BB R
BEZZS. RBECEE, AEED
S AR AR K EE A
B TG A KB . ZEEFA R
FEMTBHRENKILHER, HERaa
Rz [, FRARERREZ
SR A A KB A K (AT

#2023 F 12 A 31 H, AEFEBEAFER
HHRERT LR BB aR, DIHBARME
Al E IR T & A8 A1 54,552,140 76
(2022 4F: #5 94,188,118 T0)Z RZE, fi
E e B AR ER RIS L
B R HRIR .

CAR BRI SOAT R & AR

FA2021 53 A 29 H, RIEE T IRELERE
FH&, 3,258,992 @R IR T A A A
MET. IREEEFTETHE TEEE
RBHERNERAT L ER. ERHE
FRHAERARRAA R &EERA
A, ZEREEMGERTHEMER
T RAIRER B .
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32.

33.

34.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION - continued

Movements of share awards are as follows:

At 1 January
Vested
Forfeited

At 31 December

During the year, share-based payment
expenses of HK$6,345,645 (2022:

32.

HK$10,765,846) were recorded and credited

to reserve.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There is no material loan commitment and

33.

commitment in relation to purchase of fixed

assets and intangible assets as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Capital comprises paid up share capital and

retained profits stated on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The

34.

objective on managing capital of the Group is
to safeguard its ability to continue as a going

concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for the sole shareholder.

—-217 -

CUBAR R ZE TR ST B T 1E - 4

ik ik
Number of share awards
I FE SE AR B
2023 2022
W1A1H 3,162,992 3,222,992
B (1,045,074) .
Ll (37,622) (60,000)
A 12431 H 2,080,296 3,162,992

ARENR, DR AEEN SRR
FRISIEEE 6,345,645 J6(2022 £E. 1B
10,765,846 JC) HLET N5

AR M AR

20234 12 A 31 H A& 2022 % 12 A 31
H, REBWRE EREFTEELEE
[ 2 & E MG E AR .

BAEHE

EAOIEGZ S B IRRTEISUER
AR REGER . ARBEEATER B
R RIEEFFHEE BRI, DA
—BRAR SR
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HER MR (F) A RAF

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT - continued 34.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to the sole shareholder,
return capital to the sole shareholder or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Company is also subject to regulatory
capital requirement imposed by the Securities
and Futures Commission ("the SFC") in Hong
Kong under the Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules ("the SF(FR)R").
Capital adequacy and utilisation of regulatory
capital are monitored daily by the Company's
management in accordance with the SF(FR)R.

The Company is required to report its liquid
capital on a monthly basis and has complied
with the liquid capital requirements under the
SF(FR)R throughout the years ended

31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Company is subject to regulatory capital
requirement imposed by the Insurance
Authority in Hong Kong under the Insurance
(Financial and Other Requirements for
Licensed Insurance Broker Companies) Rules
("IR"). The Company has complied with the
capital requirement under the IR throughout
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

—-218 —

BAEH - F

AEEE L EALERE, DEBKEHIRR
RIS AR AR SRS EH AR . BT REF
BUEHE A A LERE, AEE T ReS R AT
HME—IRHEARE. TBE—RENE
A EEAITH . BZE 2023 12 A 31 H
K 20224 12 A 31 HIE=EE, AAFH
BAE. BURARRERE EESL.

KRF R EFEEF INEEFREESR
Bg([#EY]HH (BriE GTE
BIR) AR ( TRBEIFRR ) Tk
EEFBRENER. AAREHERERE
FECEIRA RIS H B E AT 2K
BEEARMEM.

KAFEEFAERIREES, WK
HE2023F 12 31 HE2022F 12 A
31 BB E N8 7 B ECE IR R R IR
& & HE -

KAFZBNEBRGERE BN (Rig
3k (FRRRRGRLA TN L HEMmE
YA ) (THREHTHEEEAR
ERRIR. RAFEFE 20234 12 A 31 H
Ko Je 2022 2 12 A 31 HILEE S8R
RIFVE AR F5E
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35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the
year. All of these transactions were entered
into and conducted according to terms
mutually agreed between the relevant group
entities.

Transactions with related parties which the
Group entered into during the year are
summarised as follows:

Interest income from immediate holding company

Commission expense to ultimate holding company

Commission expense to a fellow subsidiary

Interest expense for subordinated loans from immediate
holding company (Note a)

Interest expense for other intercompany loans (Note b)

Management fee income received from fellow subsidiaries

Management fee expense to fellow subsidiaries

The Group also had the following outstanding

balances with related parties:

Amount due to ultimate holding company (Note b)
Amount due from/(to) immediate holding company
- Current accounts (Note b}
- Interest payable relating to subordinated loans (Note a)
Subordinated loans from immediate holding company
(Note a)
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (Note b)

Amount due to a fellow subsidiary (Note b)

—-219 -

35. MEBHZS
MRz FLF A MR M 2 TR 5
b, REBRFENEE THEETLS.
B ISR 5 ik RSB g1t H
P 58 PG KT B] AL BT
AL B BRI T AENFT LA SN T
2023 2022
HK$ HKS$
T BT
BB AT SR 2,011,355,524 1,211,730,745
BRRERARHEER (77,350) (63,563)
B EZME AR M EA (4,209,806) (2,381,790)

kB EEER AT RERER

FIEX W (M5 a)

(463,879,225)  (300,234,533)

HAARRERFEXE

(FHEE b) (285,191,558) (454,403,683)
KERRMEAR
g5 (oN 744,624,014 828,858,499

RAZAMRATNEREIH

(154,488,997) -

A 52 B B i U7 R S R RO A eR a0 F

2023 2022
HKS$ HK$
BT T
[EAT BRI AR RIE ik b) (9,373,680) (9,357,360)

FEW(BADERER A R BIE

- fESRER (BHEE B) 53,483,844,469  40,468,686,422

- BEBREMTE (HE a) (105,906,818) (98,360,247)
REEEEBRATR

HBEERK (M5 2) (8,592,540,000)  (8,577,580,000)

EN R F IR A R HIE

(Fif&E b)

(PHHEE b)

26,561,166,476  33,524,986,987
B —FKRARZMWRE AT HIE
(502,437) (501,562)
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35.

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.

- continued

Notes:

(a) The subordinated loans are ranked
lower regarding their status of claims
relative to other liabilities of the
Company and are interest bearing:
US$500,000,000 of the subordinated
loans bears an annual rate of Three-
Month SOFR +2.86% (2022: Three-
Month LIBOR +2.6%) and
US$600,000,000 bears a fixed annual
interest rate of 3.24% (2022: 3.24%).
Repayment of the subordinated loans is
subject to the prior consent of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures
Commission.

(b) Except for the current accounts due
from/(to) immediate holding company
which bears interest ranging from
4.94% to 6.33% per annum (2022:
1.90% to 4.46% per annum), all other
balances are unsecured, interest free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

LOAN PAYABLES 36.

The details of the bank loans payable were as
follows:

Loans payable
Within 1 year or on demand

—220 —

FEETR 5 - #E

&

(a) BEEFHHARARAFEMEENE
HERELZ %, YHARE: BEER
FF A 500,000,000 SETCHIEFRI R A=
1 B R LRIB I AR E F 2R N 2.86%
(2022 F: =10 A A ZER AT R ZE4F
fEFIZE N 2.6%), 600,000,000 35 TTH]
FEF R A EH 2 FE 3.24% (2022 F:
3.24%). HIBREBFAFLESE
BEEMEEFREZE SN

JTh ©

(b) & T BU(BME R A/ RIE R
IR EF] BN 4.94% & 6.33% 2
M (2022 5 FF4F 1.90% & 4.46%),
e HAh s AR, 8 %

A [ % R AR -
EATER

AT ERRIFFEI T

The Group
HEE
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
BB
71 ERSREREIE 1,025,570,385 593,793,291
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36.

37.

RRIE B () B PR 7]

LOANS PAYABLE - continued 36.

Loan facilities were obtained from banks to a
total limit of HK$3,140,570,000 (2022:
HK$2,389,890,000), of which secured
banking facilities were up to a total limit of
HK$2,100,000,000 (2022:
HK$1,600,000,000). These banking facilities
were collateralised by margin clients'
securities pledged to the Group.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND  37.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Certain subsidiaries of the Group have
entered into transactions subject to an
enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement with counterparties. The
gross amounts of recognised accounts
receivable from and accounts payable to these
counterparties and the net balance as shown
on the consolidated statement of financial
position are disclosed as follows:

Financial assets subjected to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements

EATER -

TEERAT IR I RA 48R ER 7% W51
3,140,570,000 JG(2022 4 1B
2,389,890,000 JT), FHAHHIPERITEE
4 [ A8 AU 2,100,000,000 TT(2022 4
M H 1,600,000,000 J0). ZEEERITRIE LL
REEZFEAMTALBRHEFRA.

RO E Nl & E R

FEEETM B A T SR T $UTIEER
AR HF B T 7 R B AR AT AL
5. DHERRKZEETFITHEBEREST
IR RER A SR A F5 AR R v BV A
BRIEERUNT -

O R HTT EIFRRAE R
T B2 AT H 1 2

The Group
Al

Gross amount
of recognised
financial liabilities
set off in the

Related amount
not set off in the
consolidated statement

Net amount
of financial
assets presented

At 31 December 2023

Accounts receivables

Financial assets held
under resale agreements

At 31 December 2022

Accounts receivables

Financial assets held
under resale agreements

R20235F12A8318
e RR 3K

BB 4 b YT A AR

®202F12A31H8
HE AR

HOGE & &R YA AR

Gross amoum
of d

consolidated

in the consolidated
of

of financial position
Financial Collateral

financial assets financial position instruments received Net amount
i *“ﬁﬁﬂf\rﬁ" RPNEEM BRI
CHERE i E N RGN & 7
ERAA AT ‘”%ﬁiﬁ{&t—“ﬁﬁ ’r:;ﬂ!?tfif_w"ﬁ S&RMTA S YT & ekl
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$
H#TL T & T #T T
5.468.508,045 (334,984.138) 5.133.523,907 (165.844,393) (2,322,131.698) 2,645.547.816
68.098.153 68,098,153 (68.098,153)
5.850.304,968 (1.197.000.769) 4.653.304,199 (130.000,890) (2.331,414,168) 2,191.889,141
52,163,754 52.163.754 (52,163.754)
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37.

38.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - continued

Financial liabilities subjected to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements

At 31 December 2023
Accounts payables
Financia! assets sold

under repurchase agreements

At 31 December 2022
Accounts payables
Financial assets soid

under repurchase agreements

20234128318
AR UEN

Lt 12 i 8 7 K

2024128318
e 4 AR R

T EIW AR A K

Gross amount
of recognised

financial assets
set off in the

Gross amount consolidated

37. &RhEE MR A ERIKE - &

CHE . AT LR R 2 i RAE
W G AT R i B

The Group

A

Net amount

of financial
liabilities presented
in the consolidated

Related amount
not set off in the
consolidated statement
of financial position

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.

of recognised statement of statement of Financial Collateral
financial liabilities  financial position financial position instruments pledged Net amount
e ERABTSR ; KRR HIRR
EER Ferh RN T P HEHE (1 A R & AR
S e RAR Y s ST A CIITHRAT & ikl
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T i It HETT T
3.972.647.462 (334,984,138) 3,637.663,324 (165,844.393) (2.322.131.698) 1.149.687.233
29.107.957 29,107.957 (29,107.957)
5,376.310.253 (1,197,000.769) 4,179.309.,484 (130,000.890) 4.049.308.594
40.165,394 40,165.394 (40,165.394)
A E B A fobs \ 32
Gk TR < ik LB B B AN A FE

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The principal types of financial risk faced by
the Group in daily operation mainly include
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest risk,
currency risk and price risk. The Group had
formulated corresponding policies and
procedures to identify and analyse these risks,
and set up risk indicators, risk limits and
internal risk control processes in combination
with the actual circumstances with a view to
continuously managing the above risks
through the support of information systems
and effective mechanisms.

Risk management is a shared responsibility of
all the Group's employees. The Group
continuously enhances the risk management
awareness and risk sensitivity of all its
employees through training and assessment to
cultivate the risk management culture.

—222 —
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of asset loss of
the Group resulting from the default of a
product or bond issuer or counterparty
(customer). The Group has established a
credit risk management system which is being
applied to all entities of the Group, thereby
achieving full credit risk management
coverage.

The Group mainly faced three types of credit
risks, namely (i) the risks of suffering from
loss due to customer's default in financing
business; (ii) the risks caused by default of the
bond issuer in bond investment business; (iii)
the risks of assets suffering from loss due to
the default by the counterparty in transaction
business.

With respect to financing business, the Group
adopted full-process control measures such as
stringent customer and underlying assets
management, dynamic monitoring and timely
risk mitigation to control the credit risk. The
Group implemented stringent risk control
processes, conducted special risk inspections
on margin financing and securities lending
business, strengthened the counter-cyclical
management mechanism, and improved the
standard of differentiated customers
management.

With respect to bond investment business, the
Group established a unified management
system for issuers. During the reporting
period, the Group continued to promote the
systematic construction of issuers' credit risk
management modules, and enhanced the
efficiency and pertinence of risk management.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

The following is the credit rating distribution
of debt securities held by the Group:

Credit rating analysis of debt securities

Rating
- From AAA to A-
- From BBB+ to BBB-
- BB+ or below

Non-rated

Total

With respect to transaction business, the
Group promoted the construction of the
unified management system for counterparty,
further expanded the coverage of the unified
management of counterparty credit line at
group level and built a full counterparty list
system in order to strictly control its business
risk exposures. At the same time, the Group
continued to promote the systematic
construction of counterparty credit risk
management, and gradually realised the
platformisation of counterparty management
and related processes.

Expected credit losses

For assets classified under Stage 1 and Stage
2 (see below for definition), the Group
assessed credit loss allowances using the risk
parameters modeling approach that
incorporated key parameters inclusive of
collateral to loan ratios and past due days.
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VR E R EEAAE -
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LT RAEEFENEHEFNERR
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The Group
F&E
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS
BRSBTS
R Ee
- 1 AAA | A- 20,588,575 15,761,708
- £ BBB+ | BBB- 162,531,806 13,905,318
- BB+ELLLTF 27,669,955 71,915,763
210,790,336 101,582,789
RETFAR 141,659,859 170,272,230
4EER 352,450,195 271,855,019
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued
Expected credit losses - continued

For credit impaired assets classified under
Stage 3 (see below for definition), the Group
assessed credit loss allowances taking into
account the collateral securities under each
contract and the financial situation of the
borrower. The factors which the Group
considered when assessing the credit loss
allowances included but not limited to: the
industry sector of the borrower, the stock
price of the collateral securities, the average
daily trading volume of the stock, significant
risk parameters of the securities, whether the
borrowers are the holding shareholders, the
liquidity and restriction on sales, the history
of blacklist or defaults of the borrower, the
total market pledged ratios of the stock, the
collateral situation, and the credit
enhancement measures implemented by the
borrower. The Group assessed the above
factors as well as collateral to loan ratios and
past due days to evaluate and provide credit
loss allowances.

The estimated loss rates for each class of
financial assets are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the respective class of
financial assets and are adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including
macroeconomic data such as inflation rate
and GDP growth rate. The identification of
internal credit rating for individual financial
assets is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure relevant information about specific
financial assets is updated.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

Expected credit losses - continued

Definition of Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 are
as below:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Exposures where there has

not been a significant

increase in credit risk since

initial recognition and that

are not credit-impaired upon
origination, the portion of the
lifetime ECL associated with

the probability of default events
occurring within the next 12 months
is recognised.

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition but are not
credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e.
reflecting the remaining lifetime of
the financial asset) is recognised

Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of
that asset have occurred. For
exposures that have become credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL is
recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of provision) rather than the
gross carrying amount from the
beginning of the subsequent
reporting period.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

Expected credit losses - continued

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group's financial assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

Advances to customers in
margin financing

Accounts receivables (other than
advances to customers in margin
financing)

BEATFESHEMEE
BABRMERNEE

RESEF AR

JEWERR (MG RES
EFRE RN

EE RN - &

RAEEEA - &

38. @it LANSREMEHEMAFE - &

TRASIAEEZRARTBEREEBRFE
P <= il 8 E TETER O B JE B

12-month or

lifetime ECL
12 {8 B &

TR BATERA
EEEE

12-month ECL
12 {8 B W TEH
EREEE

12-month ECL
12 {8 53 M TEH
BREE

Lifetime ECL
FHEATED
EEBE

12-month ECL

12 fE R B FEHR
BFEEE

Lifetime ECL

TR
EREE
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The Group
FEE

2023 2022

Gross Gross
carrying amount carrying amount

MERME(E HERRTH

HKS$ HKS$

BT BT
- 150,684,188
953,006,806 870,974,192

1,674,966,412

2,544,663,418

45,009,802

1,735,233,705

2,031,628,732

106,147,208
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued

EEEME - &

Expected credit losses - continued

TRAEEE7R - 18

The tables below detail the credit risk T REEFAEEZIRATEHR S B B

exposures of the Group's financial assets,
which are subject to ECL assessment:
- continued

12-month or

lifetime ECL
12 8 B 8%

THEAATEN
EEEE

Financial assets held under BNRESMEEER 12-month ECL
resale agreements 12 {87 HTEHA
ERIEBE

Cash and deposits IREFTEEK 12-month ECL
12 {8 B B TEER

ERRESE

Bank balances held on behalf AR ZE BB IIRIT 12-month ECL
of customers kg 12 1 A /9 TEHR
EEBER

Details on movement in allowance for ECLs
of these financial assets are disclosed in
accounts receivable from margin clients and
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and are disclosed in
note 20 and note 21 respectively.

— 228 —
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The Group
FEH

2023 2022

. Gross Gross
carrying amount carrying amount

MERMEE HEREE

HKS$ HKS$

It BT
68,098,153 52,163,754
2,794,266,488 4,195,388,682
2,572,093,867 3,056,637,129
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Credit risk - continued
Expected credit losses - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the
exposure to the Group's largest margin client
and the top five margin clients represented
12% and 37% (2022: 20% and 46%) of the
total accounts receivable from margin clients
respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk of the Group
not being able to obtain sufficient funds at a
reasonable cost in time to meet due debts,
perform payment obligations and meet the
capital requirements of normal businesses.
The Group established a fully functional
liquidity risk management system to identify,
measure, monitor, control and report on its
overall liquidity risk to improve the
informatisation of liquidity risk management,
enhance the capabilities in the identification,
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk,
and strengthen the Group's ability in
addressing liquidity risk. In addition, the
Group also established a right-sized liquidity
assets reserves based on the risk appetite and
maintained sufficient liquidity assets with
high quality to ensure the satisfaction of
liquidity needs under stressful scenarios in a
timely manner.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that
movements in market interest rate will cause
fluctuation in the Group's financial position
and cash flow. The Group's interest-bearing
financial instruments mainly include debt
instruments and debt securities issued,
amongst others.

For financial instruments held on the
reporting date that expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk, the Group adopts
sensitivity analysis as the primary instrument
for monitoring interest rate risk. Sensitivity
analysis measures the effect of any
reasonable and potential changes to the
interest rate on the net profits and
shareholders' equity under the assumption
that all the other variables remain constant.

Hedges of interest rate risk

Interest rate swaps, denominated in US
dollars, have been entered into to achieve an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate
exposure consistent with the Group's policy.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Hedges of interest rate risk - continued

The following table provides information on
the interest rate swaps which have been
designated as cash flow hedges of the interest
rate risk arising from the Group's variable rate
debt securities issued at the end of the
reporting period:

Notional amount
Carrying amount
- Asset
- Liability

The Group seeks to hedge the benchmark
interest rate component only and applies a
hedge ratio of 1:1. The existence of an
economic relationship between the interest
rate swaps and the variable rate debt security
issued is determined by matching their
critical contract terms, including the reference
interest rates, tenors, interest repricing dates,
maturity dates, interest payment and receipt
dates, the notional amounts of the swaps and
the outstanding principal amounts of the debt.
The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in
these hedging relationships is the effect of the
counterparty and the Group's own credit risk
on the fair value of the swaps which is not
reflected in the fair value of the hedged cash
flows attributable to the change in interest
rates.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Hedges of interest rate risk - continued

The following table provides a reconciliation
of the hedging reserve in respect of interest
rate risk and shows the effectiveness of the
hedging relationships:

Balance at 1 January
Effective portion of the cash flow hedge
recognised in other comprehensive income

Net amount reclassified to profit or loss

Balance at 31 December (note)

Change in fair value of the interest rate swaps
designated as hedging instrument during the year
Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss

Net movement of cash flow hedge reserve recognised
in other comprehensive income during the year

Note: The entire balance in the hedging reserve relates to

continuing hedges.

Interest rate profile

The Group is exposed to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of its financial
instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates. In respect of
the Group's interest-bearing financial
instruments, the Group's policy is to mainly
transact in financial instruments that mature
or reprice in the short to medium term.
Accordingly, the Group would be subject to
limited exposure to fair value or cash flow
interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the
prevailing levels of market interest rates.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

The Group's assets exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk include its interest bearing
assets including bank deposits, accounts
receivable from clients and financial assets
held under resale agreements; and its
interest-bearing liabilities mainly include
debt securities issued, loans payable,
financial assets sold under repurchase
agreements and subordinated loans from
immediate holding company; while the
Group's assets exposed to fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to investment in
debt securities that are measured at fair value
while not held for financial product issuance

purpose.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk
exposure is summarised as follows:

Debt instruments

At 31 December 2023, if market interest rates
had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss after tax (2022: profit after
tax) for the year would have
increased/decreased (2022:
decreased/increased) by HK$551,692 (2022:
HK$138,213).

Cashflow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk
exposure is summarised as follows:

Debt securities
Debt securities issued
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Interest rate profile- continued
Cashflow interest rate risk - continued

At 31 December 2023, if market interest
rates had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, loss after tax (2022: profit
after tax) for the year would have
increased/decreased (2022:
decreased/increased) by HK$49,121,433
(2022: HK$13,069,370).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's
loss/profit after tax (and retained profits) that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occuired at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group's loss/profit
after tax (and retained profits) is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
as 2022.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group manages its foreign currency exposure
by matching the currencies of its financial
assets and liabilities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through its agency brokerage
transactions and clients' trust balances that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The major transactions of
the Group are entered in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi, Euros and United States dollars.
As Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United
States dollar, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar to be
insignificant.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table presents the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.

Net exposure arising from recognised assets
and liabilities

Net exposure arising from recognised assets
and liabilities
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2023
Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
& RERRE
(BLETTFIR)
Renminbi A R#

Euro BRJT

EAEMBMRRE

AL B4R 201,604,237 32,763,976

2022
Exposure to foreign currencies
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BRI
(BNETLFIR)
Renminbi AR # Euro BX T
SFEMBRRE

[ fargmEzs 156,313,138 34.249,941
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's
loss/profit after tax (and retained profits) and
other components of consolidated equity that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Effect
on profit after tax for Renminbi is accounted
for the foreign currency exposures under
foreign exchange contracts as of

31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Changes in exchange rates

T RINRAE B BRI B8/ R (S R
B Vs M| ) [R] JAE A 42 [B] iy 7 57 BE KB ) e
AR HA R A B A (R e BT LA AL By
SRR AT IR A8k Btk
me, NEBERETHME KT
fa] ¥ E S B I A e B o B 28 T i el
BERERERNRE. \REEXREH)
HRREERMEANEE AR 2023
12 A 31 H X 2022 4 12 B 31 H4MNE
EIAEHEE.

Sensitivity (in Hong Kong dollars)

HE R A BRE (LBTTHIT)

% 2023 2022
Renminbi PN +5 8,416,977 6,526,074
Euro BT +5 1,367,896 1,712,497

ERIIR T AR KBOTREER HE
SRBERPTELENRZE, B EREEU
MEEERE, RIHEREEN ER
R EERTRARNEE.

The table above indicates the impact on
equity of 5% appreciation of RMB and EUR,
there will be an opposite effect with the same
amount if the currencies depreciate by the
same percentage.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Currency risk - continued
Sensitivity analysis - continued

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end
of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the
lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2022.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. To manage the
price risk, the performance of the investee
company is regularly monitored.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity of the Group's loss/profit after tax
and equity to every 10% change in fair
values of the relevant equity stock prices.

—239 -

BURE T - B

DL U 3 A R (R B =R ik 25 AR
AT AR, WOBRRENE
ARG IR P A R E AR B 2R
AEEEERNeRTA (BEAEEL
= i LE AR A B RN S RE BB LA
BHEHER BAFIEMEWEIR). Zo
Hr A B IE LA BIR) 53Rk & B B 5 41
MENMBMEEENEZR. Zoth
R 2022 F A —HEYEIELT.

B B

B A R TR A FEETTS
BB NN EME. HEHRE
RN, EHRRPERE AR EE.

TRIURAMA B RER AT ETES
10%, AEEE R IR R AT
BB

- 153 -



HUATAI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS (HONG KONG) LIMITED

EREMEREE)ERAH

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Price risk - continued

EAR A - 48

38. @ LA EREEMATE - &

The Group The Group
AEm FAEE
2023 2022
Effect Effect Effect Effect
on loss on other on profit on other
after tax and components aftertax and  components
retained profits of equity retained profits of equity
Changein  HIBMEESE $EEHM  Changein HBRBMBER HEFAHM
fair value FRBEF HEARE S fair value  F{REBEF] AERRER S
AFEE e MEE K FEES R R4
% HKS$ HKS$ % HK$ HKS$
Market price of EEEETE 10 (36,887,514) 10 112,042,340
Equity investments (10) 36,887,514 (10) (112,042,340)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's
loss/profit after tax that would arise assuming
that the changes in fair values had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been

DL EBUSE iR, ARERRRE
B 1R/ A (8 B A TR B RS R 3k
AETEDR R, O HER R BT
EAEBPRREHARIRFE EREE
SRR R RSB eR TR

applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to price risk at the end of the
reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value

Definitions of fair value are detailed in note
3. An analysis of the fair value and the
valuation techniques of financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value are as

follows:

Financial assets measured at
fair value

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Debt instruments
- Listed
- Unlisted

Equity securities
- Listed
- Unlisted

Funds
- Listed

Convertible bonds

Derivative assets
- Interest rate swaps
- Futures and options contracts
- Total return swaps
- Foreign exchange forwards
- Warrants and CBBCs

o

=

e TERemEAREEMATE - &

R THETEN e E K A EN AT

HREH

NEERFRNGE 3. UATER
B & Rha 2 M e Rl A ER A TE Kb
EBEMT I

Fair value measurements as at

Fair value at 31 December 2023

31 December categorised into
2023 F2023F 12 831H

2023 & BEUTESATEAERE
12 8 31 HiG Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFE E1ES BB EIEH
HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS$
BAPEREN

SHRE
LT EAEIE SN JE

BI& L E
FEBELTE

B i 283,774,623 - 283,774,623 -

-JEkTT 2,187,928,261 - - 2,187,928,261

2,471,702,384 - 283,774,623 2,187,928,261

- L?ﬁ 7,801,628,164 7,794.865,134 6,763,030 -

i 1,046,756,828 - - 1,046,756,828

8,848,384,992 7,794,865,134 6,763,030 1,046,756,828
2%

- kW 201,547,452 201,547,452 - -
A ERES 68,675,572 - 68,675,572 -
TEEE

- FIZRfE A 59,761,418 - 59,761,418 -

-BERBESY 71,180,780 71,180,780 - -

-IREER 324,481,145 - 324,481,145 -
- EESNE SR 721,110 - 721,110 -
- RRTFE R A RERE 438,791 438,791 - -
456,583,244 71,619,571 384,963,673 -

12,046,894,144 8,068,032,157 744,176,898 3,234,685,089

— 241 -
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and

SRt T AR eREME BN ATE - &

AT EET B SR E E N & EIATE

liabilities measured at fair value - continued B - 4B
Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 December 2023
31 December categorised into
2023 #2023 12431 H
2023 £ BEUTESATFENESE
12 531 88 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFE FI1EH F2EH 3B
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
Interest in joint venture EEBLEZIER 420,879,122 - - 420,879,122
Financial liabilities BATERRY
measured at SRAMR
fair value
Financial liabilities F A FAEARIE s A SRHT
at fair value ERHEE
through profits or loss
Debt jnstruments BE¥IA
- Listed -k (5,505,119,096) - (5,505,119,096) -
Equity securities S
- Listed -k (7,777,218) (7,777,218) - -
Non-controlling interests JEISARAER (6,978,860) - - (6,978,860)
Structured notes EEMEERE (25,726,740,049) - (25,492,398,049) (234,342,000)
Derivative liabilities ATHEARE
- Interest rate swaps - FlZEiEH (59,706,831) - (59,706,831) -
- Futures and option contracts -HERREESHN (90,275,053) (90,275,053) - -
- Total return swaps - E#%R (1,461,679,648) - (1,461,679,648) -
- Foreign exchange forwards - EHIMEEE (18,231,948) - (18,231,948) -
- Warrants and CBBCs - R R R HERE (34,179,673) (34,179,673) - -

(1,664,073,153)

(124,454,726)

(1,539,618,427)

(32,910,688,376)

(132,231,944)

(32,537,135,572)

(241,320,860)

— 242 -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

SR B4R AR E A T - 6

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

R FERT BN CREE R BEN LT
B - &

Fair value measurements as at

Fair value at
31 December

31 December 2022
categorised into

2022 2022412 A31H
#2022 € SRUTERAFESERE
12 A 31 B Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFE E1EGH 2B EIEBY
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
I I T I
Financial assets measured at BATERER

fair value SRIBE
Financial assets at fair value L B IS m A B

through profit or loss RIS A E
Debt instruments BEBHLE

- Listed b 152,109,433 . 152,109,433 .

- Unlisted kT 2,314,968,611 - - 2,314,968,611

2,467,078,044 - 152,109,433 2,314,968,611
Equity securities RS
- Listed -k 7,566,706,276 7,566,706,276 . .
- Unlisted -dEET 1,020,062,897 - - 1,020,062,897
8,586,769,173 7,566,706,276 - 1,020,062,897
Funds &

- Listed -k 2,636,063 2,636,063 - -
Convertible bonds AR ES 119,745,586 - 119,745,586 -
Derivative assets HEEE

- Interest rate swaps - Pz HA 57,204,271 - 57,204,271 -

- Futures and options contracts - R RAESH 54,250,570 54,250,570 - -

- Total return swaps -WEE#R 292,055,551 - 292,055,551 -

403,510,392 54,250,570 349,259,822 -
11,579,739,258 7,623,592,909 621,114,841 3,335,031,508

— 243 —
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND  38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

SRt T AN e EBEEMAFE - &

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

AT ERENEBEEREAEN AT
HE - &

Fair value measurements as at

Fair value at
31 Decemnber

31 December 2022
categorised into

2022 20224 12 A31H
A 2022 & BEUTESATEERE
12 A 31 BHiY Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
AFE 1B F2BH BIBH
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$
T It &I T
Interest in joint venture REBAENELS 830,055,644 - 830,055,644
Financial assets at fair value A TER
through other LR AR
comprehensive income &R
Debt instruments EBEITEA
- Unlisted -dE kAT 150,684,188 - - 150,684,188
Financial liabilities BATFEER
measured at SHMAR
fair value
Financial liabilities L FEAZRZ
at fair value NI & EE
through profits or loss
Debt instruments E%ITA
- Listed il (2,235,433,007) (2,235,433,007)
Non-controlling interests R (9,233,762) - - (9,233,762)
Structured notes B ER (32,691,558,766) (32,457,624,766) (233,934,000)
Derivative liabilities TEAaRE
- Interest rate swaps - F R (7,823,837) - (7,823,837) -
- Futures and option contracts -HERERBESL (1,757,092) (1,757,092) - -
- Total return swaps -WEER (1,336,157,301) - (1,336,157,301) -
(1,345,738,230) (1,757,092) (1,343,981,138)
(36,281,963,765) (1,757,092) (36,037,038,911) (243,167,762)

During the years ended 31 December 2023
and 2022, there were no significant transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2. Transfers into
or out of Level 3 are disclosed as below. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair values of financial instruments traded
in active markets (i.e. Level 1) are based on
quote prices at the end of reporting period.

The fair values of debt instruments
determined with reference to market
observable broker/financial institution quotes.
The fair value of derivative financial
instruments is determined based on
discounted cash flow model applying various
market observable financial parameters,
including interest rates, forward exchange
rate, credit spread, yield spread, etc.
Structured notes are mainly classified as
Level 2 fair value measurements as their
valuations are based on the underlying assets
which are also classified as Level 2 fair value
measurements.

If one or more of these significant inputs in
valuation are not based on observable market
data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.
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ERATRETSEE, SRIATIEIA
% 3 BN TFERE.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value - continued

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

The movements during the year in the balance
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are
as follows:

Financial assets measured
at fair value and interest in joint venture:

At 1 January
Transfer out of level 3
Additions

Disposals

Change in fair value

At 31 December

Financial liabilities measured
at fair value:

At 1 January
Change in fair value

At 31 December

The following table presents the related
valuation techniques and inputs of the major
financial products with Level 3 fair value
measurements.

— 246 —

e LA e/ EREEMATE - E

N TERT BRI S ME ZE N aE AT

BERH - &

FRE 3 B LT EEERIEE

LI5S 3 B A TEFTERNAGRNASE

FESEIT
2023 2022
HKS$ HKS$
HATERTER
EMEER
REBEENER:
BLB1H 4,315,771,340 4,150,506,288
B3 3 BHEE - -
BA 215,526,489 2,730,815,250
i (430,409,069) (2,193,084,773)
ATF{HED (445,324,549) (372,465,425)
128318 3,655,564,211 4,315,771,340
2023 2022
HK$ HK$
O TFERFER
EREE:
B1A18 (243,167,762) (248,451,730)
N FEEE) 1,846,902 5,283,968
B12A8318 (241,320,860) (243,167,762)

TRINMESE 3 B AT EFBENEE
S RbE R ETE A E.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and

liabilities measured at fair value - continued

38, EE CAMEREREEMAPE - &

AT EF BN SRMEE N EBRNAT

EHIEH - &

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements - continued

Financial assets &/l & &
Unlisted equity securities at
fair value through profit or
loss and interest in joint
venture
BATFERBRAIRNIEL
TR RN &S S ENE

fﬁ-’i

Debt securities at fair value
through profit or loss/fair
value through other
comprehensive income

A TE IR 2/ H AR A TR
BRI AT

Financial liabilities & B & 1&
Structured notes

HRETEER

Non-controlling interest

e[l F

Significant
unobservable input(s)

Valuation Techniques BERELEE
B A BE

Market approach Pricing multiples of market

gk comparable companies used

to determine the estimated
equity value of the project
company:
- Price to sales multiple

R EEETEE 4 BRI flEt
BB E 2 5 AT b o
FZ BB
- BAR BB

Discount rate for lack of
marktetability

BRZ WIGRENE 2 B IR

Discounted cash flow
model

BRI SRR

Risk adjusted discount rate

AR R RS IR &

The return of the note is
linked to unlisted equity
securities, and the note
is valued directly with
reference to underlying

Fair value of underlying asset

HEEEXTE

asset
ZHEEIREAE B
éﬁﬁaﬁéﬁ%ﬁ b=
B1E

Fair value of related fund

FRMEE A FE

The fair value is linked to
related fund
investments, and is
valued directly with
reference to related fund

AFERABES B
BE, HEEE2%E
AREEEE

— 247 —

IR 3 JERLL - FEET BTG R - 18

Relationship of
unobservable
input(s) to fair value
LB RMABIEEN T
EZ &

The higher the pricing
multiples, the higher the
fair value -

HERRES, ATE

T

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value

MRERTE, ATEZ
&

The higher the risk
adjusted discount rate,
the lower the fair value

AR R MRS TR 2R A
B, AFERR

The higher the fair value
of underlying asset, the
higher the value of
structured note

HEEELTFEERS,
HENRREERR

The higher the fair value
of related fund,
the higher the value of
non-controlling interest
HREE A TFEES,
FEREREELS
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38.

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - continued

Fair value hierarchy on financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial

mstruments carried at cost or amortised cost
approximate their fair values as at
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to
the date of approval of these consolidated

financial statements, the Group issued notes of

HK$181 millions, US$234.3 million and
CNY 600 million with maturity within 1 year.

e TAEMeRmEAREENLFE - &

FEiE A FEIRN EREE &K AER A
FE

BE2023F 128 31 HE20224F 12 A
31 B, REBIZAAREHEE AT ER
SRE E MR A B AR ERE AT
(EREEZN

WG MR EIR

A 20234 12 A 31 HREMNEBEEZEZSHES
A sRERAE R B, ANEE DT
1.81 1870, EL 2343 ERARE 6 EE
B, JYAYAE—EN.
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